

## A quantitative approach to the effects of social policy measures. An application to Portugal, using Social Accounting Matrices

Santos, Susana

ISEG (School of Economics and Management), TULisboa – Technical University of Lisbon, UECE – Research Unit on Complexity and Economics

 $2 \ \mathrm{July} \ 2010$ 

Online at https://mpra.ub.uni-muenchen.de/23612/ MPRA Paper No. 23612, posted 05 Jul 2010 10:00 UTC

### A quantitative approach to the effects of social policy measures. An application to Portugal, using Social Accounting Matrices.<sup>(\*)</sup>

#### Susana Santos

ISEG (School of Economics and Management)/TULisboa – Technical University of Lisbon; UECE – Research Unit on Complexity and Economics<sup>(\*\*)</sup> and DE – Department of Economics; ssantos@iseg.utl.pt; https://aquila1.iseg.utl.pt/aquila/homepage/f645

#### (July 2010)

- (\*) Presented to the 18<sup>th</sup> International Input-Output Conference, held in Sydney, Australia, on 20-25/6/2010.
- (\*\*) UECE (Research Unit on Complexity and Economics) is financially supported by FCT (Fundação para a Ciência e a Tecnologia), Portugal. This paper is part of the Multi-annual Funding Project (POCI/U0436/2006).

#### Abstract

The impacts of policy measures on transfers between government and households will be quantified using Social Accounting Matrices (SAMs).

The System of National Accounts (SNA) will be the main source used for the construction of the numerical version of these matrices, which will then form the basis for two algebraic versions. One version will consist of accounting multipliers, and *structural path analysis* will also be used for its decomposition. The other version will be a so-called SAM-based linear model, in which each cell will be defined with a linear equation or system of equations, whose components will be all the known and quantified transactions of the SNA, using the parameters deduced from the numerical SAM that served as the basis for this model.

Macroeconomic aggregates and balances, as well as structural indicators of the distribution and use of income, will be calculated from numerical and algebraic versions of the SAM. These will make it possible to quantify and compare the effects of social policy measures and to evaluate their differences, in order to define the path for future research work on the SAM-based linear model.

**Key words:** Social Accounting Matrix; SAM-based Modelling; Macroeconomic Modelling; Policy Analysis; Structural Path Analysis

**JEL Codes**: E61; E10; D57.

### **Abbreviations**<sup>1</sup>

CPA	- Classification of Products by Activity
ESA 95	- European System of National and Regional Accounts in the European
	Community of 1995 (Eurostat, 1996)
GDP	– Gross Domestic Product
INE	- Instituto Nacional de Estatística (Statistics Portugal)
ISCED	- International Standard Classification of Education
ISWGNA	- Inter-Secretariat Working Group, published by the United Nations Statistical
	Office
NACE (Rev.1)	- New Statistical Nomenclature of the Economic Activities in the European
	Community
NPISHs	<ul> <li>Non-Profit Institutions Serving Households</li> </ul>
SAM	– Social Accounting Matrix
SNA	- System of National Accounts
SNA 93	- System of National Accounts of 1993 (ISWG, 1993)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Besides those listed in Appendix A.2.3.

### CONTENTS

1. Introduction	. 1
2. The SAM numerical version	2
2.1. Structural indicators of the distribution and use of income; identifying social policy	
measures and the corresponding scenarios to be studied	12
3. The SAM algebraic versions	18
3.1. Accounting multipliers, their components and the first results for the scenarios	
identified	19
3.2. The SAM-based linear model	31
3.3. Accounting multipliers and the SAM-based linear model	36
4. Quantifying effects of social policy measures using macroeconomic aggregates and	
balances	36
5. Concluding Remarks	42
References	46
Appendices	
A.1. Accounting multipliers for Portugal in 1995 and 2005	48
A.2. SAM-based linear model	58
A.2.1. Structural indicators	58
A.2.2. Macroeconomic aggregates	58
A.2.3. Conventions and declarations	58
A.3. Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts for 1995 and 2005	65

### List of Tables

4		
1.	Portuguese basic SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 1995 (in millions of euros)	4
2.	Portuguese basic SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 2005 (in millions of euros)	5
3.	Identifying the National Accounts transactions in the cells of the basic SAM	6
4.	Portuguese SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 1995 (in millions of euros)	8
5.	Portuguese SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 2005 (in millions of euros)	10
6.	Distribution of the generated income, among factors of production and institutions, in the	
	Portuguese SAM for 1995 and 2005 (in percentage terms)	12
7.	Distribution and use of disposable income, among institutions, in the Portuguese SAM	
	for 1995 and 2005 (in percentage terms)	13
8.	Per capita household disposable income and final consumption (euros per person), in	
	Portugal in 1995 and 2005	15
9.	Current taxes on income, wealth, etc., paid by households to the government, and social	
	benefits other than social transfers in kind paid, by the government to households, in	
	Portugal in 1995 and 2005	15
10.	The Government and Households Budgets in the Portuguese SAM for 1995 and 2005 (in	
	millions of euros)	17
11.	The SAM in endogenous and exogenous accounts	19
12.	Direct influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the government .	23
13.	Global influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the	
	government	24
14.	Additional group influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the	
	government	24
15.	Structural path analysis of the global influences on aggregate demand of unitary changes	
	in the exogenous current receipts of the government	27
16.	Direct influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of households	28
17.	Global influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of households	28
18.	Additional group influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of	
	households	29
19	Structural path analysis of the global influences on aggregate demand of unitary changes	
	in the exogenous current receipts of households	31
20	The formalized transactions (cells) in the basic SAM	32
20. 21	Impacts of a reduction (of 1%) in the rate of direct taxes haid by households to the	54
<i>2</i> 1.	any accompany of a reduction (of 176) in the rate of anect taxes paid by households to the	27
	government on macroconomic aggregates in 1993 and 2003	51

22. Impacts of a reduction (of 1%) in the rate of direct taxes paid by households to the	
government on macroeconomic balances in 1995 and 2005	39
23. Impacts of an increase (of 1%) in the social benefits other than social transfers in kind	
received by households from the government on macroeconomic aggregates in 1995 and	
2005	41
24. Impacts of an increase (of 1%) in the social benefits other than social transfers in kind	
received by households from the government the macroeconomic balances in 1995 and	
2005	41
Appendix A.1. Accounting multipliers for Portugal in 1995 and 2005	
A.1.1. Average expenditure propensities matrices – 1995 (Scenario A)	48
A.1.2. Average expenditure propensities matrices – 2005 (Scenario A)	48
A.1.3. Accounting multipliers matrix – 1995 (Scenario A)	49
A.1.4. Accounting multipliers matrix – 2005 (Scenario A)	49
A.1.5. Additional intragroup or direct effects matrix $(M_1 - I) - 1995$ (Scenario A)	50
A.1.6. Additional intragroup or direct effects matrix $(M_1 - I) - 2005$ (Scenario A)	50
A.1.7. Additional intergroup or indirect effects matrix $(M_2 - I) * M_1 - 1995$ (Scenario A)	51
A.1.8. Additional intergroup or indirect effects matrix $(M_2 - I) * M_1 - 2005$ (Scenario A)	51
A.1.9. Additional extragroup or cross effects matrix (M <sub>3</sub> - I) * M <sub>2</sub> * M <sub>1</sub> - 1995 (Scenario A)	52
A.1.10.Additional extragroup or cross effects matrix (M <sub>3</sub> - I) * M <sub>2</sub> * M <sub>1</sub> - 2005 (Scenario A)	52
A.1.11.Average expenditure propensities matrices – 1995 (Scenario B)	53
A.1.12. Average expenditure propensities matrices – 2005 (Scenario B)	53
A.1.13.Accounting multipliers matrix – 1995 (Scenario B)	54
A.1.14.Accounting multipliers matrix – 2005 (Scenario B)	54
A.1.15.Additional intragroup or direct effects matrix $(M_1 - I) - 1995$ (Scenario B)	55
A.1.16. Additional intragroup or direct effects matrix $(M_1 - I) - 2005$ (Scenario B)	55
A.1.17. Additional intergroup or indirect effects matrix $(M_2 - I) * M_1 - 1995$ (Scenario B)	56
A.1.18. Additional intergroup or indirect effects matrix $(M_2 - I) * M_1 - 2005$ (Scenario B	56
A.1.19.Additional extragroup or cross effects matrix (M <sub>3</sub> - I) * M <sub>2</sub> * M <sub>1</sub> - 1995 (Scenario B)	57
A.1.20.Additional extragroup or cross effects matrix (M <sub>3</sub> - I) * M <sub>2</sub> * M <sub>1</sub> - 2005 (Scenario B)	57
Appendix A.3. Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts	
A.3.1.1995 (in millions of euros)	65
A.3.2.2005 ((in millions of euros)	67

#### 1. Introduction

This paper is intended to be yet one more (small) step forward in the research that its author has been undertaking, for several years, into the SAM in general and now, in particular, into SAM-based modelling. Thus, on the one hand, it uses the work published in Santos (2008, 2009, 2009a) and the papers prepared for presentation by the author at two conferences in 2009<sup>2</sup> and, on the other hand, it updates almost all of that work to 2005.

From the author's point of view, the SAM is a powerful working instrument for socio-(macro)economic planning, since with its underlying methodology it is possible to arrive at perfectly harmonized models and databases that contemplate important aspects of the economic and social sides of the real world. Further research is planned to improve this part of the work and to study other aspects of these (economic and social) sides, as well as to consider yet further issues (such as the environment, for instance).

In the Preface to the study by F. Lequiller and D. Blades, entitled *Understanding National Accounts*, E. Giovannini says: "today's national accounts are the core of a modern system of economic statistics, and provide the conceptual and actual tool to bring to coherence hundreds of statistical sources available in developed countries"<sup>3</sup>. This is, in fact, a particular advantage enjoyed by developed countries and something which the developing countries are gradually working towards.

Thus, working with SAMs constructed from the national accounts can be a way of working with quantified reality in a more precise fashion. It is in this particular area that the author has been researching, constructing numerical (macro)SAMs from the national accounts (Section 2) and developing a SAM-based linear model. In the latter case, each cell is defined through a linear equation or system of equations, whose components are all the known and quantified transactions of the national accounts, using the parameters deduced from the numerical SAM that served as the basis for this model (Section 3.2). Such a model still has very restrictive assumptions, but its purpose is to better understand the results obtained and to progressively improve them. In order to achieve this aim, another SAM-based model will also be used – the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> "Constructing and Modelling SAMs from the SNA for the study of impacts of policy measures" (*57th Session of the International Statistical Institute*). *Durban (South Africa)*: 16-22/8/2009.

<sup>&</sup>quot;SAM-based modelling for policy and scenario analysis" (17th International Input-Output Conference, promoted by *IIOA* (International Input-Output Association) and the Department of Economics of the School of Economics, Business and Accountancy of the University of São Paulo). *São Paulo (Brazil)*: 13-17/7/2009.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Lequiller F., Blades D. (2006), *Understanding National Accounts*, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), Paris (France) (p. 3).

one based on accounting multipliers<sup>4</sup> – whose additive decomposition will be analysed before the use of structural path analysis (Section 3.1) in order to provide a better understanding and interpretation of the differences between the results (Sections 3.3 and 4).

Therefore, in order to study the distributional effects of social policy measures, after analysing some of the structural indicators of the distribution and use of income and identifying the transfers between government and households that are to be worked upon as social policy measures (Section 2.1), identical experiments to those of the work referred to in the first paragraph will be performed using the two above-mentioned SAM-based models or SAM algebraic versions – multipliers and linear model. The analysis of the results and their comparison will be conducted using macroeconomic aggregates and balances (Section 4).

The concluding remarks (Section 5) will highlight not only the main methodological aspects of the work, but also the main results and their differences, in accordance with the alternative applications of the models to Portugal in two years separated by a gap of eleven years – 1995 and 2005. Finally, some guidelines will be provided suggesting a possible path for future research work on the SAM-based linear model.

#### 2. The SAM numerical version

As mentioned above, the national accounts will be the source of information adopted in this work.

The System of National Accounts (SNA) that provided the information worked on for Portugal in 1995 and 2005 was the European System of National and Regional Accounts in the European Community of 1995 – ESA 95 (Eurostat, 1996), which is based on the 1993 version of the International United Nations System of National Accounts – SNA 93, prepared by the Inter-Secretariat Working Group and published by the United Nations Statistical Office (ISWGNA, 1993). Consequently, all the conventions and nomenclatures of that system have been adopted.

Considering the purpose of this paper and the information available for the years to be studied, the classification adopted for the accounts of both the numerical and, consequently, the algebraic versions of the SAM does not involve too high a level of disaggregation. Thus, in the case of the domestic economy, "Production and Trade" was divided into six groups of products and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Fixed-price multipliers could also be used. However, on the one hand, tests performed by the author have shown that the results from accounting multipliers have a greater degree of veracity (Santos, 2007), and on the other hand, we would also need numerical SAMs for successive years, which is not the case.

activities<sup>5</sup> and two factors of production – labour (employees) and own assets (employers and/or own account workers and capital). In turn, "Institutions" were divided into current, capital and financial accounts, with the last of these being a totally aggregate figure (due to the lack of information on the "from whom to whom" transactions) while the others were divided into: households, enterprises (or non-financial corporations), financial corporations, general government and non-profit institutions serving households (NPISH). Besides these accounts, we also have an aggregate account for the "rest of the world".

The criterion used by the author for ordering the accounts was the one underlying the SAMs represented in Tables 1, 2, 4 and 5 – the first two presented in a basic and completely aggregate form and the others presented with the adopted disaggregation. Table 3 identifies the SNA transactions in the cells of the basic SAM, which will maintain their characteristics after the adopted disaggregation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Respectively: group P6 of the "Classification of Products by Activity (CPA)" – principal products of activities according to NACE Rev.1., and group A6 of the "New Statistical Nomenclature of the Economic Activities in the European Community (NACE)" Rev. 1. See the description of each group in Appendix A.2.3. (sets).

	Outlays	Pi	roduction and Trade		(dome	estic) Institutions acc	counts	rest of the world	
Inco (recei	mes ipts)	products (p)	activities (a)	factors of prod. (f)	current (dic)	capital (dik)	financial (dif)	(rw)	TOTAL
<b>Γ</b> rade	products (p)	Trade and Transport Margins (0)	Intermediate Consumption (84 102)	0	Final Consumption (64 898)	Gross Capital Formation (19 623)	0	Exports (24 433)	Aggregate Demand (193 056)
tion and 7	activities (a)	Production (154 394)	0	0	0	0	0	0	Production Value (154 394)
Produc	factors of production (f)	0	Gross Added Value, at factor cost (70 725)	0	0	0	0	Compensation of Factors from the RW (3 243)	Aggregate Factors Income (73 968)
accounts	current (dic)	Net taxes on products (10 283)	Net taxes on production (-346)	Gross National Income, at factor cost (70 542)	Current Transfers (42 145)	0	0	Current Transfers from the RW (3 960)	Aggregate Income (126 583)
() Institutions	capital (dik)	0	0	0	Gross Saving (17 291)	Capital Transfers (4930)	Net borrowing (40)	Capital Transfers from the RW (2 320)	Investment Funds (24 582)
(domestic	financial (dif) 0		0	0	0	0	Financial Transactions (35 030)	Financial Transactions from the RW (9 257)	Total financial transactions (44 287)
rest of the world (rw)		Imports + net taxes on products (28 127 + 252)	Net taxes on production (-87)	Compensation of Factors to the RW (3 426)	Current Transfers to the RW (2 249)	Capital Transfers to the RW (29)	Financial Transactions to the RW (9 217)		Transactions Value to the RW (43 213)
тот	<b>TAL</b>	Aggregate Supply (193 056)	Total Costs (154 394)	Aggregate Factors Income (73 968)	Aggregate Income (126 583)	Aggregate Investment (24 582)	Total financial transactions (44 287)	Transactions Value from the RW (43 213)	

#### **Table 1**. Portuguese basic SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 1995 (in millions of euros)

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) – Portuguese National Accounts for 1995.

	Outlays	Pi	roduction and Trade		(dome	estic) Institutions acc	counts	rest of the world	
Inco (rece	mes ipts)	products (p)	activities ( <i>a</i> )	factors of prod. (f)	current (dic)	capital (dik)	financial (dif)	(rw)	TOTAL
Trade	products (p)	Trade and Transport Margins (0)	Intermediate Consumption (148 312)	0	Final Consumption (126 644)	Gross Capital Formation (33 649)	0	Exports (42 567)	Aggregate Demand (351 173)
tion and 7	activities (a)	Production (276 675)	0	0	0	0	0	0	Production Value (276 675)
Produc	factors of production (f)	0	Gross Added Value, at factor cost (129 626)	0	0	0	0	Compensation of Factors from the RW (7 822)	Aggregate Factors Income (137 447)
accounts	current (dic)	Net taxes on products (20 899)	Net taxes on production (-854)	Gross National Income, at factor cost (126 179)	Current Transfers (78 861)	0	0	Current Transfers from the RW (4 603)	Aggregate Income (229 688)
) Institutions	capital (dik)	0	0	0	Gross Saving (19 025)	Capital Transfers (8 174)	Net borrowing (12 335)	Capital Transfers from the RW (2 404)	Investment Funds (41 937)
(domestic	financial (dif)	0	0	0	0	0	Financial Transactions (37 825)	Financial Transactions from the RW (31 113)	Total financial transactions (68 938)
rest of the world (rw)		Imports + net taxes on products (53 737 - 139)	Net taxes on production (-409)	Compensation of Factors to the RW (11 269)	Current Transfers to the RW (5 158)	Capital Transfers to the RW (114)	Financial Transactions to the RW (18 779)		Transactions Value to the RW (88 509)
тот	<b>TAL</b>	Aggregate Supply (351 173)	Total Costs (276 675)	Aggregate Factors Income (137 447)	Aggregate Income (1229 688)	Aggregate Investment (41 937)	Total financial transactions (68 938)	Transactions Value from the RW (88 509)	

#### **Table 2.** Portuguese basic SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 2005 (in millions of euros)

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) – Portuguese National Accounts for 2005.

		SAM	N	National Accounts transactions				
row	column	Description(valuation <sup>6</sup> )	(SNA) code	Description (valuation <sup>6</sup> )				
р	р	trade and transport margins		trade and transport margins				
а	р	production (basic prices)	P1	output (basic prices)				
dic	р	net taxes on products (paid to domestic institutions – general government)	D21-	taxes on products minus				
rw	р	net taxes on products (paid to the RW)	-D31	subsidies on products				
		imports (cif prices)	P7	imports of goods and services (cif prices)				
р	rw	exports (fob prices)	P6	exports of goods and services (fob prices)				
р	а	intermediate consumption (purchasers' prices)	P2	intermediate consumption (purchasers' prices)				
р	dic	final consumption (purchasers' prices)	P3	final consumption expenditure (purchasers' prices)				
р	dik	gross capital formation (purchasers' prices)	P5	gross capital formation (purchasers' prices)				
f	a	gross added value (factor cost)	D1 D4 B2g B3g	compensation of employees net property income gross operating surplus gross mixed income				
dic	а	net taxes on production (paid to domestic institutions - general government)	D29-	other taxes on production minus				
rw	а	net taxes on production (paid to the RW)	-037					
dic	f	gross national income	B5g	gross national income				

#### Table 3. Identifying the National Accounts transactions in the cells of the basic SAM

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> In the transactions involving products and/or activities, three levels of valuation can be distinguished: factor cost; basic/cif/fob prices and purchasers' or market prices.

The first of these levels is that of the compensation of the factors used in the production process of the domestic economy during the accounting period. In analysing those factors, one can distinguish between labour (employees and own-account workers and/or employers) and capital. In this case, compensation is respectively the compensation of employees (wages and salaries and employers' social contributions – transactions D11 and D12 of the National Accounts), mixed income (balance B3 of the National Accounts) and the gross operating surplus (balance B2 of the National Accounts).

At the second level, one can distinguish between the production of the domestic economy and imports. In the first case, this is measured by the factor cost from the previous level, plus (other) taxes on production (transaction D29 of the National Account), net of subsidies on production (transaction D39 of the National Accounts), as well as by intermediate consumption. This represents the basic price level of the (domestic) production that will be transacted in the domestic market and the fob (free on board) price level of the production that will be exported. Imports, valued at cif (cost-insurance-freight included) prices, are added, at this level, to the above-mentioned unexported part of domestic production that will be transacted in the domestic market.

The third level relates to products, either domestically produced or imported, that are transacted in the domestic market. Here, the basic/cif prices (referred to in the previous level) will be increased by adding to them the trade and transport margins and the taxes on products (transaction D21 of the National Accounts), net of subsidies (transaction D31 of the National Accounts).

		SAM	National Accounts transactions					
row	column	Description(valuation <sup>6</sup> )	(SNA) code	Description (valuation <sup>6</sup> )				
rw	f	compensation of factors to the RW	D1	primary income paid to/received from the				
f	rw	compensation of factors from the RW	DI D4	rest of the world compensation of employees net property income				
dic	dic	current transfers within domestic institutions	D5 D6	current taxes on income, wealth, etc. social contributions and benefits				
rw	dic	current transfers to the RW	D7	other current transfers				
dic	rw	current transfers from the RW	D8	of households in pension funds reserves				
dik	dic	gross saving	B8g	gross saving				
dik	dik	capital transfers within domestic institutions	D.					
dik	rw	capital transfers from the RW	D9	capital transfers				
rw	dik	capital transfers to the RW						
dik	dif	- net borrowing <sup>7</sup>	B9	net borrowing				
dif	dif	financial transactions within domestic institutions	F1 F2	monetary gold and special drawing rights (SDRs)				
rw	dif	financial transactions to the RW	F3 F4 F5	securities other than shares loans				
dif	rw	financial transactions from the RW	F6 F7	insurance technical reserves other accounts receivable/payable				

#### A quantitative approach to the effects of social policy measures. An application to Portugal, using Social Accounting Matrices. (SSantos, July 2010)

Source: Santos (2007a).

Note: See the correspondence identified between this Table and the values (in brackets) of the basic SAMs (Tables 1 and 2) in the "Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts for Portugal in 1995 and 2005" – Tables A.3.1 and A.3.2. (Appendix A.3.)

Details on the sources of information and methodologies used in the construction of the SAM for 1995 (with a higher level of disaggregation) can be found in Santos, 2009: 179-184 – identical to those adopted in the SAM for 2005.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> In the National Accounts, the net lending (+) or borrowing (-) of the total economy is the sum of the net lending or borrowing of the institutional sectors. It represents the net resources that the total economy makes available to the rest of the world (if it is positive) or receives from the rest of the world (if it is negative). The net lending (+) or borrowing (-) of the total economy is equal (but with an opposite mathematical sign) to the net borrowing (-) or lending (+) of the rest of the world (SEC 95, Prg. 8.98).

In the SAM's capital account, it is considered as a component of investment funds, required/not required to cover aggregate investment. In other words, it is the financing requirement/capacity of the economy that will be covered/absorbed by financial transactions (from/to the rest of the world, since the national funds are not enough/in excess). Therefore, in the case of Portugal in 1995 and 2005, in which there is net borrowing, we have a financing requirement that is covered by financial transactions, i.e. a resource of the capital account (row) and a use of the financial account (column). If there were net lending, we would have financing capacity that would be absorbed by financial transactions, i.e. a resource of the capital account (column).

		Outlays (expendite	ures)		PRODUCTION															
						]	PRODUCTS							ACTIVITIES	5				FACTORS	
				Products of agriculture, hunting, forestry	Products from mining and quarrying	Construction work	Wholesale and retail trade services	Financial intermediation services, real estate	Other services	Total	Agriculture, hunting and forestry	Industry, including energy	Construction	Wholesale and retail trade	Financial, real-estate, renting	Other service activities	Total	Labour - employees	Own assets	Total
Income	s (rece	eipts)	/	1	2	3	4	5	6		7	8	9	10	11	12		13	14	
		Products of agriculture	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	606	4 640	0	369	0	78	5 693	0	0	0
	22	Products from mining and	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 756	29 1 58	5 096	6 608	1 559	3 346	47 524	0	0	0
	5	Construction work	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	30	250	3 394	280	525	128	4 606	0	0	0
	ğ	Wholesale and retail trade	4	1 236	13 886	0	-15 122	0	0	0	121	1 197	247	4 193	897	896	7 552	0	0	0
	Ř	Financial intermediation	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	112	3 019	563	3 092	7 514	2 365	16 666	0	0	0
	-	Other services	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	26	315	38	347	713	623	2 061	0	0	0
z		Total		1 236	13 886	U	-15 122	U	U	U	2651	38 579	9337	14 889	11 209	7 437	84 102	U	U	U
E		Agriculture, hunting and forestry	7	6 060	379	2	0	19	0	6 460	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
B	N H	Industry, including energy	8	0	55 321	69	2	413	48	55 852	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
8	E	Construction	9	0	12	14 191	0	0	0	14 204	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PR	ΔI	Wholesale and retail trade	10	0	25	13	31 749	683	0	32 469	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	AC	Financial, real-estate, renting	11	0	5	14	0	20 967	0	20 987	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
		Other service activities	12	3	81	28	78	852	23 379	24 421	U	U	U	U	0	U	U	U	U	U
	70	lotal		6 064	55 823	14 317	31 829	22 934	23 427	154 394	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	ORS	Labour - employees	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	652	9 258	2 589	8 222	4 212	13 630	38 563	0	Û	0
	Ĕ	Own assets	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 327	8 0 5 4	2 303	9 478	5 583	3 417	32 161	0	0	0
	FA	Total		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 979	17 313	4 892	17 700	9 794	17 047	70 725	0	0	0
	Ţ	Households	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	38 620	20 994	59 614
	cou	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11 561	11 561
	AC	Financial corporations	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 787	1 787
	NT	Government	18	- 1	7 108	405	1 046	1 347	378	10 283	- 135	- 31	- 20	- 96	- 13	- 50	- 346	0	-2 558	-2 558
NN	URRE	Non Profit Institutions Serving Households (NPISH)	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	137	137
1 è	U	Total		- 1	7 108	405	1 046	1 347	378	10 283	- 135	- 31	- 20	- 96	- 13	- 50	- 346	38 620	31 922	70 542
151	ы	Households	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
IT2NI	NUO:	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	ğ	Financial corporations	22	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	AL /	Government	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	APIT.	Non Profit Institutions Serving Households (NPISH)	24	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	Total		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	FINAN	ICIAL ACCOUNT	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
REST	OF THE	E WORLD	26	1 481	24 689	32	840	1 181	156	28 379	- 34	- 8	- 5	- 24	- 3	- 13	- 87	64	3 363	3 426
TOTA	L			8 781	101 506	14754	18 592	25 462	23 961	193 056	6 460	55 852	14 204	32 469	20 987	24 421	154 394	38 683	35 285	73 968

#### Table 4. Portuguese SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 1995 (in millions of euros)

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) – Portuguese National Accounts for 1995.

		Outlays (expendit	ures)						II	STITUTION:	3							
			ŕ			CURRENT	ACCOUNT					CAPITAL	ACCOUNT				1	
				Households	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	Financial corporations	Government	Non Profit Insti- tutions Serving Households (NPISH)	Total	Households	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	Financial corporations	Government	Non Profit Insti- tutions Serving Households (NPISH)	Total	FINANCIAL ACCOUNT	REST OF THE WORLD	TOTAL
Incom	es (rece	eipts)		15	16	17	18	19		20	21	22	23	24		25	26	
		Products of agriculture	1	2 546	0	0	18	0	2 564	185	130	0	3	0	318	0	205	8 781
	22	Products from mining and	2	27 967	0	0	628	0	28 595	768	5 282	347	452	246	7 095	0	18 292	101 506
	Ŋ.	Construction work	3	74	0	0	0	0	74	4 1 48	2 816	437	2 552	120	10 072	0	1	14754
	Ā	Wholesale and retail trade	4	5 467	0	0	37	0	5 504	91	194	19	1	0	305	0	5 231	18 592
	PR	Financial intermediation	5	6 388	0	0	77	43	6 508	505	1049	110	8	0	1 671	0	617	25 462
		Other services	0	6 136	0	0	14 272	1 245	21 653	28	91	10	1	1	10.000	0	87	23 961
N N		lotal	_	48.578	0	U	15 032	1 288	64 898	2/00	9 362	922	3018	300	19 623	0	24 433	193 006
Ĕ		Agriculture, hunting and forestry	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6 460
B	SS H	Industry, including energy	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	55 852
8	E	Construction	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	14 204
PR	11 1	Wholesale and retail trade	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	32 469
	AC	Financial, real-estate, renting	11	U	0	U	U	U	0	0	0	U	U 0	U	U	U		20 987
		Other service activities	12	U	0	U	0	U	U	0	U	U	U	U	U	0	U U	24 421
	70	lotal		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	154 394
	Ř	Labour - employees	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	120	38 683
	CTO	Own assets	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 123	35 285
	FA	Total		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 243	73 968
	Ţ	Households	15	470	1 349	2 051	9 623	13	13 506	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 293	76 413
	cout	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	16	1 339	58	363	0	0	1 759	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	23	13 344
	AC	Financial corporations	17	2 1 2 5	329	29	4	14	2 501	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	35	4 323
	Ч	Government	18	13 883	2 108	229	6 866	7	23 092	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	609	31 081
SN	URRE	Non Profit Institutions Serving Households (NPISH)	19	323	50	34	878	0	1 286	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 423
8	U	Total		18 141	3 894	2 705	17 371	35	42 1 45	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 960	126 583
D.	ы	Households	20	7 952	0	0	0	0	7 952	0	0	812	206	0	1 018	-4 023	147	5 095
ILSU	NUO:	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	21	0	9 342	0	0	0	9 342	0	0	0	707	0	707	- 49	896	10 896
	20	Financial corporations	22	0	0	1 558	0	0	1 558	0	484	328	2	0	814	- 287	0	2 085
	Ţ	Government	23	0	0	0	-1 661	0	-1 661	63	161	3	1 870	4	2 100	4 423	1 275	6 1 3 6
	APIT/	Non Profit Institutions Serving Households (NPISH)	24	0	0	0	0	100	100	0	0	0	291	0	291	- 23	1	370
	U	Total	-	7 952	9 342	1 558	-1 661	100	17 291	63	645	1 1 4 3	3 075	4	4 930	40	2 320	24 582
	FINAN	ICIAL ACCOUNT	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	35 030	9 257	44 287
REST	OF THI	E WORLD	26	1 743	108	60	339	0	2 249	- 723	689	20	43	0	29	9 217	0	43 212
TOTA	L			76 413	13 344	4 323	31 081	1 423	126 583	5 095	10 896	2 085	6 136	370	24 582	44 287	43 212	

#### **Table 4**. Portuguese SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 1995 (in millions of euros) (continued)

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) – Portuguese National Accounts for 1995.

	Outlays (expenditures) PRODUCTION																			
					_		PRODUCTS							ACTIVITIES					FACTORS	
				Products of agriculture, hunting, forestry	Products from mining and quarrying 	Construction work	Wholesale and retail trade services	Financial intermediation services, real estate	Other services	Total	Agriculture, hunting and forestry	Industry, including energy	Construction	Wholesale and retail trade	Financial, real-estate, renting	Other service activities	Total	Labour - employees	Own assets	Total
Incom	es (rece	eipts)		1	2	3	4	5	6		7	8	9	10	11	12		13	14	
		Products of agriculture	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 041	4 779	0	631	40	176	6 666	0		0
	20 H	Products from mining and	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 038	46 816	8915	11 595	1 912	5 994	77 270	0		0
	ġ	Construction work	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	93	735	8 729	771	1 010	326	11 663	0		0
	l Ā	Wholesale and retail trade	4	2 216	22 919	0	-25 139	0	4	0	157	2 285	244	8 232	1 519	2 605	15 043	0		0
	Ř	Financial intermediation	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	428	5 690	1 236	9 422	12 411	4 528	33 714	0		0
	Other services 6				0	0	0	0	0	0	33	267	21	464	610	2 560	3 9 5 5	0		0
z		Total	2 216	22 919	0	-25 139	0	4	0	3 790	60 571	19 145	31 115	17 503	16 189	148 312	0		0	
Ê		Agriculture, hunting and forestry	7	6 949	406	16	28	33	0	7 432	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
B	N N	Industry, including energy	8	0	81 560	376	704	507	121	83 268	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
8	E	Construction	9	0	72	27 507	127	234	0	27 940	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
PR	AL	Wholesale and retail trade	10	0	1 392	184	58 303	2 479	0	62 357	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	5	Financial, real-estate, renting	11	1	106	73	319	44 556	2	45 057	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	~	Other service activities	12	5	211	333	296	2 079	47 698	50 622	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
		Total		6 955	83 747	28 489	59 776	49 888	47 821	276 675	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	ORS	Labour - employees	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	826	13 022	6 029	18 325	8 830	28 327	75 358	0	0	0
	Ĕ	Own assets	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 482	9 900	2 840	13 271	18 352	6 422	54 267	0	0	0
	FA	Total		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4 308	22 922	8 869	31 596	27 182	34 7 4 9	129 626	0	0	0
	NТ	Households	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	75 198	31 058	106 255
	D D D	Enterprises	16	0	0	0		0	0	n	n	0	n			0	Ω		15,000	15,000
	Ŭ	Financial compositions	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		4 638	4 638
	Ē	Government	18	- 216	13 547	786	2 3 40	3 596	846	20 200	- 450	- 153	- 50	. 230	252	. 214	- 854		- 707	- 707
m	REP	Non Profit Institutions Serving	19																	,0,
Ö	B	Households (NPISH)	_	0	12.547	704	2240	2 504	046	0 20.900	450	152	0	220	0	214	0.54	75 100	50.091	984
ITU		l otal Households	20	- 216	13 547	780	<u>2</u> 340	3 390 N	840 0	∠0 899 Ω	- 450	دد <u>۱</u> - ۱		- 439	22	- 214 N	- 804 N	0 101	0 00	126179
STIT	IND	Enterprises	20		Ŭ						Ŭ		ŭ							
Ä	р В	(nonfinancial corporations)	<u></u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	AC AC	Financial corporations	22	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	AL	Government	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	LIT	Non Profit Institutions Serving	24					0		0							0			
	ປັ 2	Total	_	0		0		U	0	0	0		0			0	0		<u> </u>	0
Total				0		0		U	0	0	0						0		<u>                                     </u>	0
DEGT	rinan or tur		22	1 220	47.044		1 404	0 1100	201	U 52 500	0	70	0	114	100	100	U 400	250	10 010	11.260
TOTA		E WORLD	<u> 20</u>	2 220	4/200	- )	0001	2 1 3 2	40.000	25 172	- 210	- /3	- 24	- 114	120	- 102	- 409	300	10 919	11 209
TOTA	L			11 174	167 468	29 271	38 383	22.012	49 062		7 432	83 268	27 940	62 357	45 057	50.622	2/6675	15 547	01900	137 447

#### Table 5. Portuguese SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 2005 (in millions of euros)

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) – Portuguese National Accounts for 2005.

	Outlays (expenditures) INSTITUTIONS																	
						CURRENT	ACCOUNT				-	CAPITAL	ACCOUNT					
				Households	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	Financial corporations	Government	Non Profit Insti- tutions Serving Households (NPISH)	Total	Households	Enterprises (nonfinancial corporations)	Financial corporations	Government	Non Profit Insti- tutions Serving Households (NPISH)	Total	FINANCIAL ACCOUNT	REST OF THE WORLD	TOTAL
Incom	es (rece	eipts)		15	16	17	18	19		20	21	22	23	24		25	26	
		Products of agriculture	1	3 670	0	0	0	0	3 670	215	44	0	0	0	259	0	579	11 174
	2	Products from mining and	2	47 418	0	0	1 550	48	49 016	786	8 511	273	861	305	10 735	0	30 445	167 468
	β.	Construction work	3	116	0	0	0	0	116	5 827	7 313	663	3 448	241	17 491	0	0	29 271
	۱ <u>۾</u>	Wholesale and retail trade	4	13 213	0	0	143	0	13 356	109	239	6	5	5	363	0	9 820	38 583
	Ř	Financial intermediation	5	15 675	0	0	151	150	15 976	1 307	2 888	73	59	56	4 383	0	1 542	55 615
		Other services	6	11 565	0	0	30 1 30	2 814	44 509	123	227	21	7	39	417	0	181	49 062
z		Total		91 638	0	0	31 974	3 012	126 644	8 366	19 221	1 037	4 380	643	33 649	0	42 367	351 173
1 E		Agriculture, hunting and forestry	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7 432
B	N N N	Industry, including energy	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	83 268
8	E	Construction	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	27 940
PR	LI V	Wholesale and retail trade	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	62 357
	Ų.	Financial, real-estate, renting	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	45 057
		Other service activities	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	50 622
		Total		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	276 675
	ORS	Labour - employees	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	189	75 547
	Ĕ	Own assets	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7 633	61 900
	FA	Total		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7 822	137 447
	NT	Households	15	856	1 753	3 466	22 781	20	28 875	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 413	138 544
	no:	Enterprises (nonfinancial componitions)	16	1 745	110	1.012		0	2 882	0		0	0		0		84	17 075
	Ŭ	Financial comorations	17	3 383	1 045	1013	20	26	4 577	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	67	0 277
	Ē	Government	18	27 258	4 416	429	7 944	37	40 084	0	n 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	1 044	60.466
	Ē	Non Profit Institutions Serving		2, 250		147	,,,,,		10 00 1				Ŭ	Ŭ		Ŭ		
N22	E E	Households (NPISH)	19	946	550	44	873	31	2 443	0	l o	0	l o	l o	0	0	0	3 426
1 P	5	Total		34 188	7 882	5 054	31 622	114	78 861	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4 603	229 688
5	н	Households	20	9 544	0	0	0	0	9 544	0	0	1 929	246	0	2 174	-4 725	152	7 145
ILLSN	NNO	Enterprises (nonfinancial cornerations)	21	n	9 224	0	n	Π	9 224	0	0	0	1 361	0	1 361	8 758	630	20.633
	۲ų S	Financial corporations	22	0	0	4072	0	0	4072	0	75	2 195	5	0	2 275	- 681	4	5 670
	₹	Government	23	0	0	0	-4775	0	-4775	122	34	94	1 866	7	2 1 2 4	9 023	1 466	7 838
	T ₹	Non Profit Institutions Serving																
	API	Households (NPISH)	24	0	0	0	0	300	300	0	0	57	183	0	240	- 41	152	652
	0	Total		9 544	9 884	4 072	-4775	300	19 025	122	109	4 27 5	3 661	7	8 174	12 335	2 404	41 937
	FINANCIAL ACCOUNT 25			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	37 825	31 113	68 938
REST OF THE WORLD 26				3 1 5 4	209	151	1 644	0	5 1 5 8	-1 344	1 303	358	- 203	0	114	18 779		88 509
TOTA	TOTAL			138 544	17 975	9 277	60 466	3 426	229 688	7 145	20 633	5 670	7 838	652	41 937	68 938	88 509	

#### Table 5. Portuguese SAM (Social Accounting Matrix) for 2005 (in millions of euros) (continued)

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) – Portuguese National Accounts for 2005.

# 2.1. Structural indicators of the distribution and use of income; identifying social policy measures and the corresponding scenarios to be studied

Some indicators were calculated in order to be able to better identify the distributional effects of social policy measures. Thus, structural indicators of the functional and institutional distribution of generated income, as well as of the use of disposable income were calculated from the numerical version of the SAM for the two years under study – without any additional data<sup>8</sup>. Since additional data were worked on in a previous study for 1995 (Santos, 2009), some details will be used from this work in order to complement the following analysis.

**Table 6.** Distribution of the generated income, among factors of production and institutions, in

the Portuguese SAM for 1995 and 2005 (in percentage terms).

	1995	2005
Factors of Production		
(generated income = gross added value, at factor cost)		
Labour	54.5	58.1
(employees)		
Own assets	45.5	41.9
(employers and/or own-account workers; capital)		
Total	100.0	100.0
Institutions		
(generated income = gross national income)		
Households	84.5	84.2
Non-financial corporations	16.4	11.9
Financial corporations	2.5	3.7
General government	-3.6	-0.6
Non-profit institutions serving households	0.2	0.8
Total	100.0	100.0

Sources: Tables 4 and 5.

In the functional distribution of the generated income, or the distribution of the gross added value among factors of production (see the first part of Table 6), a little more than half is compensation of employees, which in 2005 was 3.6 percentage points higher than in 1995.

In 1995, the level of education of employees was as follows<sup>9</sup>: 48.3%, lower; 33%, medium; 18.7%, higher. In turn, employers and/or own-account workers, whose compensation represented

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> In the case of the SAM-based linear models, these indicators can also be calculated from the algebraic version, with the equations described in Appendix A.2.1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Description of the educational levels, in accordance with the ISCED (International Standard Classification of Education): lower - primary and lower secondary school; medium - upper and post-secondary school; higher - tertiary education. (Santos, 2009: 172).

7.5% of the 45.5% generated by own assets, were distributed according to the following levels of education: 55.7%, lower; 33.3%, medium; 11%, higher (Santos, 2009: 92-93).

In terms of institutional distribution (see the second part of Table 6), households have the most significant share of the generated income, which was slightly less in 2005. At a significant distance from households, non-financial corporations were in second position, although their importance declined from 1995 to 2005, in favour of all the others. Attention should be drawn to the position of the general government and the decrease in its negative value in 2005, meaning that its contribution to generated income increased significantly.

In 1995, considering their main source of income, within the 84.5% of the generated income of households, 62.1% came from employees (with wages and salaries as the main source of income) and 18.6% from employers and/or own-account workers (with mixed income including property income as the main source of income) (Santos, 2009: 96).

Each institution obtains its disposable income by excluding from gross national income the current transfers paid to other institutions and to the rest of the world, and by including the current transfers received from the other institutions and the rest of the world and, in the case of the government, net indirect taxes. This disposable income is then used in final consumption and saved, except in the case of non-financial and financial corporations, which do not have any final consumption.

Table	7.	Distribution	and	use	of	disposable	income,	among	institutions,	in	the	Portuguese
		SAM for 19	995 a	nd 2	005	(in percent	age term	s).				

	Distribution of	Use of Disposab	ole Income
	Disposable Income	Final Consumption	Saving
1995			
Households	69.3	86.3	13.7
Non-financial corporations	11.2	0.0	100.0
Financial corporations	1.9	0.0	100.0
General government	16.0	112.4	-12.4
Non-profit institutions serving households	1.7	92.8	7.2
Total	100.0	79.3	20.7
2005			
Households	69.9	90.8	9.2
Non-financial corporations	6.7	0.0	100.0
Financial corporations	2.8	0.0	100.0

	Distribution of	Use of Disposat	ole Income
	Disposable	Final	Souing
	Income	Consumption	Saving
General government	18.4	117.6	-17.6
Non-profit institutions serving households	2.2	90.9	9.1
Total	100.0	87.1	12.9

Sources: Tables 4 and 5.

As it would be of expecting, households have more than a half of the disposable income, followed by general government, with less than a quarter, having been both positions slightly reinforced in 2005 – the same happened with the other institutions, except the non-financial corporations.

As is to be expected, households have more than half of disposable income, followed by general government, with less than a quarter, with both positions having been slightly reinforced in 2005 – the same thing happened with other institutions, except non-financial corporations.

In 1995, within the 69.3% of the disposable income of households, the group whose main source of income was wages and salaries (employees) accounted for 41.9% (Santos, 2009: 98).

It should be noted that the final consumption considered here is the expenditure (transaction P3 of the national accounts) and not the "actual" final consumption (transaction P4 of the national accounts), i.e. the amount really spent by each institution, although a part of the final consumption of the general government and (all) that of the NPISH will take the form of social transfers in kind (transaction D63 of the national accounts) and will include the "actual" final consumption of households.

Final consumption expenditure absorbed the largest and an increasing (except for the NPISH) part of disposable income, in detriment to saving, whose share fell by 7.8 percentage points, from 1995 to 2005.

On the other hand, since, in this case, households represent everybody in Portugal, *per capita* disposable income and final consumption can be calculated by dividing the corresponding amounts for households by the resident population in each year.

**Table 8.** Per capita household disposable income and final consumption (euros per person), inPortugal in 1995 and 2005.

	Disposable income	Final Con	sumption
		Expenditure	Actual
1995	5 761	4 837	5 850
2005	9 768	8 672	10 766

Source: Statistics Portugal (*INE*) – Portuguese National Accounts for 1995 and 2005; Statistical Yearbook for Portugal - 2008.

Thus, on average, Portuguese people saw their *per capita* disposable income and final consumption significantly increase over eleven years (disposable income: 69.6%; final consumption expenditure: 79.3%; actual final consumption: 84%). This also means a real improvement, since in 2005 the implicit price index in final consumption was 137.15 and in GDP 137.34 (1995 = 100)<sup>10</sup>. Information by groups of households would improve our knowledge about this evolution, although unfortunately this is not available.

Since the aim is to test methodologies designed to illustrate the distributional effects of social policy measures, which could have been the ones described above that were adopted for improving the financial situation of people – and therefore of households – we should consider flows in which both government and households intervene directly, for instance: direct taxes on income, paid by households to the government; and social benefits, paid by the government to households. Table 9 shows the absolute and relative positions of those flows in the years studied.

Table 9. Current taxes on income, wealth, etc., paid by households to the government, and social benefits other than social transfers in kind, paid by the government to households, in Portugal in 1995 and 2005.

	Current taxes of et	n income, wealth, .c. <sup>(a)</sup>	Social benefits other than social transfers in kind <sup>(c)</sup>			
	millions of euros	rate of direct taxes <sup>(b)</sup> (%)	millions of euros	% of DI <sup>(d)</sup>		
1995	4 932	6.5	9 485	16.4		
2005	8 275	6.0	22 121	21.4		

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) – Portuguese National Accounts for 1995 and 2005.

Notes:

<sup>(a)</sup> Transaction D5 of the National Accounts.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Values calculated by the author from the Portuguese National Accounts time series of final consumption and GDP at current and previous years' prices.

- <sup>(b)</sup> Current taxes on income, wealth, etc. paid by households to the government, per unit of received aggregate income<sup>11</sup>.
- <sup>(c)</sup> Transaction D62 of the National Accounts<sup>12</sup>.
- <sup>(d)</sup> Social benefits other than social transfers in kind paid by the government to households, per unit of disposable income of households.

These figures reveal a tendency, on the one hand, towards a decrease in the rate of direct taxes and, on the other hand, towards an increase in the social benefits, which, in a first approach, goes some way towards achieving the above-mentioned aim of improving the financial situation of people.

On the other hand, Table 10 helps us to see the position of these flows in the budgets of these two institutional sectors.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> ti in the linear model – see Section 3.2.

 $<sup>^{12}</sup>$  D62P in the linear model- see Section 3.2.

	Resources or Receipts (row)			Uses or Expenditure (column)				Balance						
		Gover	nment	House	cholds		Gove	rnment	Hous	seholds	Gover	mment	House	eholds
		1995	2005	1995	2005		1995	2005	1995	2005	1995	2005	1995	2005
1.Cu	urrent Account (a)	31 081	60 466	76 413	138 544		32 742	65 241	68 461	129 000	- 1661	- 4 775	7 952	9 544
	Gross National Income at factor cost	- 2558	- 707	59 614	106 255	Final Consumption	15 032	31 974	48 578	91 658				
	Net taxes on production	- 346	- 854	-	-	Current transfers to domestic institutions - households - government	17 371 9 623 6866	31 622 22 781 7 944	18 141 470 13 883	34 188 856 27 258				
	Net taxes on products	10 283	20 899	-	-	Current transfers to the RW	339	1 644	1 743	3 154				
	Current transfers from domestic institutions - households - government	23 092 13 883 6 866	<b>40 084</b> 27 258 7 944	13 506 470 9 623	28 875 856 22 781									
	Current transfers from the RW	609	1 044	3 293	3 413									
2. C	apital Account	3 375	3 590	1 166	2 326		6 136	7 838	5 095	7 145	- 2 761	- 4 248	- 3929	- 4 818
	Capital transfers from domestic institutions	2 100	2 124	1 018	2 174	Gross Capital Formation	3 018	4 380	5 755	8 366				
	Capital transfers from the RW	1 275	1 466	147	152	Capital transfers to domestic institutions	3 075	3 661	63	122				
						Capital transfers to the RW	43	- 203	- 723	- 1344				
3 =	1 + 2 (b)	34 456	64 055	77 579	140 870		38 878	73 079	73 556	136 145	- 4 423	- 9 032	4 023	4 725

#### Table 10. The Government and Households Budgets in the Portuguese SAM for 1995 and 2005 (in millions of euros)

Source: Tables 4 and 5 (rows/columns 15, 18, 20 and 23)

(a) Balance = Gross saving

(b) Balance = - Net lending (+)/borrowing (-)

#### A quantitative approach to the effects of social policy measures. An application to Portugal, using Social Accounting Matrices. (SSantos, July 2010)

Thus, in terms of the position of the current transfers in the flows of domestic institutions into the government and households' budget in the years studied, the main sources of the government's receipts are current transfers from domestic institutions (67% in 1995 and 62.6% in 2005) and net taxes on products, while the main sources of its expenditure are current transfers to domestic institutions (44.7% in 1995 and 43.3% in 2005) and final consumption, with expenditures being increasingly larger than receipts and leading to the corresponding increase of the deficit in all of its balances. In the case of households, which maintain positive current and total budget balances, the main sources of receipts and expenditures are, respectively, the (gross national) income generated by them and final consumption – with current transfers playing a less important role (17.4% in 1995 and 20.5% in 2005, in total receipts; 24.7% in 1995 and 25.1% in 2005, in total expenditures). Therefore it is to be expected that changes in the current transfers between the government and households will certainly have a greater impact on government budget than on the households' budget.

For a better study of these effects, two scenarios will be studied: one (A) in which there will be a 1% reduction in the rate of the direct taxes associated with the current taxes on income, wealth, etc., paid by households to the government; and another (B) in which there will be a 1% increase in the social benefits (other than social transfers in kind) received by households from the government.

#### 3. The SAM algebraic versions

Since our concern here is to quantify the effects of the social policy measures identified above, while also paying close attention to income distribution, the accounts of the institutions and their associated transactions will assume a central role. However, the production and rest of the world accounts should not be neglected, but their associated transactions must be afforded a level of specification that is different from the one found in models that attribute them a central role.

Static and comparative static analysis will be carried out with both the versions described below, in a framework in which prices are not separated from quantities, with changes being identified only at the level of values. On the other hand, it will be assumed that there is excess capacity in the economy and that the production technology and resource endowment are given.

# 3.1. Accounting multipliers, their components and the first results for the scenarios identified

The base methodology that is to be followed is centred upon the use of multipliers and their decomposition. A systematic outline of this methodology is provided below, following Santos 2004 and 2007, in keeping with the work of Pyatt and Roe (1977), Pyatt and Round (1985) and Defourny and Thorbecke (1984).

#### a) Deduction of the accounting multipliers

As shown in Table 11, we will have both exogenous and endogenous accounts, so that consequently the transactions in each cell of the SAM will be considered exogenous or endogenous according to the corresponding row and column accounts.

		EXPENDITURES							
		Endogenous	Σ	Exogenous	Σ	TOTAL			
Š	Endogenous	Ν	n	Х	х	Уn			
ECEIPT	Exogenous	L	1	R	r	y <sub>x</sub>			
R	TOTAL	yn'		yx'					

Table 11	. The SAM	in endogenous	s and exogenous accounts	5
----------	-----------	---------------	--------------------------	---

Source: Pyatt and Round (1985).

where:

- N = matrix of transactions between endogenous accounts; n = vector of the (corresponding) row sums.
- X = matrix of transactions between exogenous and endogenous accounts (injections from first into second); x = vector of the (corresponding) row sums.
- L = matrix of transactions between endogenous and exogenous accounts (leakages from first into second); l = vector of the (corresponding) row sums.
- R = matrix of transactions between exogenous accounts; r = vector of the (corresponding) row sums.
- $y_n = \text{vector (column) of the receipts of the endogenous accounts (} \hat{y}_n: \text{diagonal}; \hat{y}_n^{-1}: \text{inverse}); y_n' = \text{vector (row) of the expenditures of the same accounts.}$
- $y_x$  = vector (column) of the receipts of the exogenous accounts;  $y_x$ ' = vector (row) of the expenditures of the same accounts.

From Table 11, it can be written that

$$\mathbf{y}_{n} = \mathbf{n} + \mathbf{x} \tag{1}$$

$$y_x = l + r \tag{2}$$

The amount that the endogenous accounts receive is equal to the amount that they spend (row totals equal column totals). In other words, in aggregate terms, total injections from the exogenous into the endogenous accounts (i.e. the column sum of "x") are equal to total leakages from the endogenous into the exogenous accounts, i.e. considering i' to be the unitary vector (row), the column sum of "1" is:

$$x * i' = 1 * i'.$$
 (3)

In the structure of Table 11, if the entries in the N matrix are divided by the corresponding total expenditures, a corresponding matrix (squared) can be defined of the average expenditure propensities of the endogenous accounts within the endogenous accounts or of the use of resources within those accounts. Calling this matrix  $A_n$ , it can be written that

$$\mathbf{A}_{n} = \mathbf{N}_{*} \mathbf{\hat{y}}_{n}^{-1} \tag{4}$$

$$\mathbf{N} = \mathbf{A}_{\mathbf{n}^*} \, \hat{\mathbf{y}}_{\mathbf{n}} \tag{5}$$

Considering equation (1),  $y_n = A_{n*}y_n + x$  (6)

Therefore, 
$$y_n = (I - A_n)^{-1} * x = M_a * x.$$
 (7)

We thus have the equation that gives the total receipts of the endogenous accounts  $(y_n)$ , by multiplying the injections "x" by the matrix of the accounting multipliers:

$$\mathbf{M}_{a} = (\mathbf{I} - \mathbf{A}_{n})^{-1}.$$
 (8)

On the other hand, if the entries in the L matrix are divided by the corresponding total expenditures, a corresponding matrix (non squared) can be defined of the average expenditure propensities of the endogenous accounts into the exogenous accounts or of the use of resources from the endogenous accounts into the exogenous accounts. Calling this matrix  $A_l$ , it can be written that

$$\mathbf{A}_{l} = \mathbf{L}_{*} \hat{\mathbf{y}}_{n}^{-l} \tag{9}$$

$$\mathbf{L} = \mathbf{A}_{l^*} \, \mathbf{\hat{y}}_{\mathbf{n}} \tag{10}$$

Considering equation (2), 
$$y_x = A_{l*}y_n + r$$
 (11)

Thus, 
$$I = A_1 * y_n = A_1 * (I - A_n)^{-1} * x = A_1 * M_a * x.$$
 (12)

So, with the accounting multipliers, the impact of changes in receipts is analysed at the moment when they occur, assuming that the structure of expenditure in the economy does not change.

#### b) Decomposition of the accounting multipliers

Accounting multipliers can be decomposed if we consider the  $A_n$  matrix and two other ones with the same size ( $B_n$  - with the diagonal of  $A_n$ , whilst all the other elements are null - and  $C_n$  - with a null diagonal, but with all the other elements of  $A_n$ ). In this way, it can be written that

$$A_n = B_n + C_n. \tag{13}$$

Thus, from equation (6):

$$y_n = B_n * y_n + C_n * y_n + x = [I - (I - B_n)^{-1} * C_n]^{-1} * (I - B_n)^{-1} * x^{-13}.$$
 (14)

Therefore: 
$$M_a = [I - (I - B_n)^{-1} * C_n]^{-1} * (I - B_n)^{-1} = M_3 * M_2 * M_1.$$
 (15)

The accounting multiplier matrix is thus decomposed into multiplicative components, each of which relates to a particular kind of connection in the system as a whole  $(Stone, 1985)^{14}$ .

- The intragroup or direct effects matrix, which represents the effects of the initial exogenous injection within the groups of accounts into which it had originally entered i.e.:

$$M_1 = (I - B_n)^{-1}.$$
 (16)

- The intergroup or indirect effects matrix, which represents the effects of the exogenous injection into the groups of accounts, after its repercussions have completed a tour through all the groups and returned to the one which they had originally entered In other words, if we consider "t" to be the number of groups of accounts (six in the present study):

$$M_2 = \{I - [(I - B_n)^{-1} * C_n]^t\}^{-1}.$$
(17)

- The extragroup or cross effects matrix, which represents the effects of the exogenous injection when it has completed a tour outside its original group without returning to it, or, in other words, when it has moved around the whole system and ended up in one of the other groups. Thus, for the "t" groups of accounts:

$$M_{3} = \{I + [(I - B_{n})^{-1} * C_{n}] + [(I - B_{n})^{-1} * C_{n}]^{2} + \dots + [(I - B_{n})^{-1} * C_{n}]^{t-1}\}$$
(18)

The decomposition of the accounting multipliers matrix can also be undertaken in an additive fashion, as follows:

$$M_a = I + (M_1 - I) + (M_2 - I) * M_1 + (M_3 - I) * M_2 * M_1$$
(19)

where I represents the initial injection and the remaining components are the additional effects associated, respectively, with the three components described above  $(M_1, M_2 \text{ and } M_3)$ .

 $<sup>^{13}</sup>y_n = A_n * y_n + x = B_n * y_n + C_n * y_n + x \Leftrightarrow y_n - B_n * y_n = C_n * y_n + x \Leftrightarrow y_n = (I-B_n)^{-1} * C_n * y_n + (I-B_n)^{-1} * x \Leftrightarrow y_n - (I-B_n)^{-1} * C_n * y_n + (I-B_n)^{-1} * x \Leftrightarrow y_n - (I-B_n)^{-1} * C_n * y_n + (I-B_n)^{-1} * x \Leftrightarrow y_n - (I-B_n)^{-1} * x_n = (I$ 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> For a detailed breakdown and explanation of these components, see, for example, Stone (1985, pp. 156-162); Pyatt and Round (1985, pp. 192-197); Santos (1999, pp. 67-69).

Defourny and Thorbecke (1984) introduced an alternative to the above decomposition, namely *structural path analysis*, which makes it possible to identify and quantify the links between the pole (account) of origin and the pole (account) of destination of the impulses resulting from injections. According to this technique, the accounting multiplier is considered as a "global influence", which is decomposed into a series of "total influences". These, in turn, are decomposed into "direct influences" multiplied by the "path multiplier":

$$ma_{ji} = I^{G}_{(i \to j)} = \sum_{p=1}^{n} I^{T}_{(i \to j)_{p}} = \sum_{p=1}^{n} I^{D}_{(i \to j)_{p}} .Mp$$
(20)

where:

 $ma_{ji}$  is the  $(j,i)^{th}$  element of the M<sub>a</sub> (accounting multipliers) matrix, which quantifies the full effect of a unitary injection  $x_j$  on the endogenous variable  $y_j$ 

 $I_{(i \to j)}^{G}$  is the *Global Influence* of the pole i on the pole j

- *p* is the *n*<sup>th</sup> elementary *path* the arc linking two different poles, oriented in the direction of expenditure, located between *i* and *j*, with *i* being the pole of origin of the elementary *path 1* (the first) and *j* the pole of destination of the elementary *path n* (the last)
- $I_{(i \to j)_n}^T$  is the *Total Influence* transmitted from *i* to *j* along the elementary *path p*
- $I_{(i \rightarrow j)_p}^D$  is the *Direct Influence* of *i* on *j* transmitted along the elementary *path p*, which measures the magnitude of the influence transmitted between its two poles through the average expenditure propensity,
- *Mp* is the *Multiplier* of the *path p*, or the *path Multiplier*, which expresses the extent to which the influence along the elementary *path p* is amplified through the effects of adjacent feedback circuits<sup>15</sup>:

$$Mp = \frac{\Delta p}{\Delta} \tag{21}$$

where:  $\Delta$  = the determinant of matrix  $|I-A_n|$  of the structure represented by the SAM  $\Delta p$  = the determinant of the submatrix of  $|I-A_n|$  obtained by removing the row and the column associated with the poles of the elementary *path p* 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> A circuit is a path for which the first pole (pole of origin) coincides with the last pole (pole of destination) (Defourny and Thorbecke, 1984, p. 119).

# c) Scenario A (reduction in the rate of direct taxes paid by households to the government) – first results

Considering the methodology described above and the scenario to be studied, involving a flow from the households to the government, the (current and capital) accounts of the households were set as exogenous, as were also the financial and the rest of the world accounts, and the accounting multipliers were calculated and decomposed. From these results, the effects or influences of unitary changes (a reduction, in this case) in government current income were identified, as follows.

 Table 12. Direct influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the government

	1995	2005
Final consumption expenditure	0.48	0.53
Current transfers		
- within government, to the other institutions and to		
the rest of the world	0.26	0.17
– to the households	0.31	0.38
Savings	-0.05	- 0.08
Total	1.00	1.00

Source: Tables A.1.1 and A.1.2

(columns dicg, corresponding to column 18, in both Table 4 and Table 5).

Note: Social transfers in kind represent a final consumption expenditure of the government and are not considered in the current transfers. In both years, social transfers in kind were about 60% of the government's final consumption expenditure.

The average expenditure propensities, represented in Table 12, measure the direct influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the government – for instance in the direct taxes paid by households. From this table, it can be concluded that almost a half (0.48 in 1995; 0.53 in 2005) of that unit is spent on final consumption (of which approximately 60% will be transformed into social transfers in kind) and that more than a quarter is spent in current transfers (in cash) to households. Therefore, the direct effect of a reduction in the current expenditures of households, through a reduction in the direct taxes paid by households to the government, mainly means a reduction in the final consumption expenditure and in the current receipts of the government and, consequently, in the current receipts of households (coming from the government's current transfers – in cash or in kind). However, this impact on the current receipts of the households cannot be measured with the use of the multiplier methodology, since the accounts of the households are exogenous.

Accounting multipliers and their components, quantify a global influence on the endogenous accounts, which is quantified by the values of Tables 13 and 14, as follows.

	1995	2005
Aggregate Demand/Supply	0.968	0.831
Production Value/Total Costs	0.883	0.766
Aggregate Factors Income		
– Labour	0.408	0.380
– Own Assets	0.149	0.126
Aggregate Income		
– of the government	1.317	1.187
- of the other Institutions (except households)	0.097	0.064
Aggregate Investment/Investment Funds		
– of the government	- 0.101	- 0.123
- of the other Institutions (except households)	0.026	0.004

 Table 13. Global influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the government

Source: Tables A.1.3 and A.1.4

(columns dicg, corresponding to column 18, in both Table 4 and Table 5).

Apart from the effect on the aggregate income of the government, where 1 is the initial injection (leakage, in the case of scenario A) of income, the greatest effects of unitary changes in the current receipts of the government were felt on aggregate demand (supply) and production values (total costs), reflecting the great importance of final consumption for the total current outlays of the government, as noted earlier.

These global effects generally decreased from 1995 to 2005, meaning that the impacts of such a social policy measure on the whole economy were less noticeable in 2005.

Some more conclusions about these effects can be drawn from the multipliers' components, as shown in Table 14.

 Table 14. Additional group influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the government

		1995			2005	
	intra	inter	extra	intra	inter	extra
Aggregate Demand/Supply	0	0.088	0.880	0	0.074	0.757
Production Value/Total						
Costs	0	0.013	0.870	0	- 0.008	0.774
Aggregate Factors Income						
– Labour	0	0.040	0.368	0	0.044	0.336
– Own Assets	0	0.034	0.115	0	0.033	0.092
Aggregate Income						
– of the government	0.284	0.006	0.027	0.151	0.004	0.032
– of the other institutions	0	0.004	0.094	0	0.003	0.061
(except households)						

#### A quantitative approach to the effects of social policy measures. An application to Portugal, using Social Accounting Matrices. (SSantos, July 2010)

	1995			2005		
	intra	inter	extra	intra	inter	extra
Aggregate Investment/						
/Investment Funds						
– of the government	0	- 0.001	- 0.100	0	- 0.001	- 0.122
– of the other institutions	0	0.023	0.003	0	0.015	- 0.011
(except households)						

Source: Tables A.1.5 – A.1.10

(columns dicg, corresponding to column 18, in both Table 4 and Table 5).

Thus, additional intragroup effects were felt only at the level of the aggregate income of the government. There is a clear predominance of additional extragroup influences, meaning that most of the repercussions originating from the current account of the government do not return to it, with the low values of the additional intergroup influences representing those repercussions that do in fact return.

The importance of the additional extragroup influences, as well as the values of global influences, can be seen in Figure 1, which provides a schematic representation of the direct influences associated with the network of elementary paths and adjacent circuits linking endogenous accounts, with particular emphasis on the current account of the government.



**Figure 1.** Scenario A - Network of elementary paths and adjacent circuits linking endogenous

Note: This outline represents only the *paths* whose poles of origin <u>and</u> destination are the endogenous accounts.

Source: Tables A.1.1 and A.1.2 (values in brackets)

Considering the importance of final consumption for the government, especially in the case of the products of group 6, relative to services<sup>16</sup>, which will be the social transfers in kind, the cells (p6, dicg) of the corresponding accounting multipliers (Tables A.1.3 and a.1.4) were decomposed through *structural path analysis*, in keeping with equation (20), with attention being centred on the accounts of that group of products and of the government. Table 15 shows the results of this analysis.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Services other than wholesale and retail trade services, repair services, hotel and restaurant services, transport and communication services (products 4) and financial intermediation services, real estate, renting and business services (products 5).

	1995	2005
Accounting Multiplier	0.659	0.642
Path 1 (dicg $\rightarrow p6$ )		
$I^T = I^D * Mp$	0.626	0.628
$I^D$	0.459	0.498
Мр	1.363	1.260
Path 2 (dicg $\rightarrow$ dikg $\rightarrow$ p6)		
$I^T = I^D * Mp$	0.000	0.000
$I^D$	0.000	0.000
Мр	1.969	1.655
Other Paths (dicg $\rightarrow \dots \rightarrow p6$ )		
$I^T$	0.033	0.014

**Table 15**. Structural path analysis of the global influences on aggregate demand of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of the government

Source: Tables A.1.3 and A.1.4.

Figure 1 helps us to see the linkages between accounts and how the impacts are widespread. Thus, *path 1* directly links the current account of the government (dicg or 18) to the account of the group of products 6 (p6 or 6) and absorbs almost all the impact, with the high values of the path multipliers showing that most of the impacts result from the adjacent feedback circuits. *Path* 2 makes the same link through the capital account of the government (dikg) and has no importance in terms of total influence, although its path multiplier has a higher value than in *path 1*, showing its important role in the amplification of the effects through the adjacent feedback circuits. All the *other paths* have a significantly low importance.

The high values of the path multipliers help to underline the identified importance of the additional extragroup and intergroup influences, in the additional decomposition of the accounting multipliers.

It is important to remember that, with this methodology, apart from the unitary change in the current expenditures of households, through the reduction in the rate of direct taxes paid by households to the government (which is a direct effect), nothing more can be measured in terms of the global effects of that measure on the households' aggregate income and aggregate investment/investment funds, since their current and capital accounts were set as exogenous.

# d) Scenario B (increase in the social benefits other than social transfers in kind received by households from the government) – first results

In this scenario, a flow from the government to the households will be studied. Thus, besides the financial and the rest of the world accounts, the (current and capital) accounts of the government were set as exogenous and the accounting multipliers were then calculated and decomposed.
Next, the effects or influences of unitary changes (an increase, in this case) in the households' current income were identified, as follows.

	1995	2005
Final consumption expenditure	0.64	0.66
Current transfers		
– within households, to the other institutions and to		
the rest of the world	0.08	0.07
– to the government	0.18	0.20
Savings	0.01	0.07
Total	1.00	1.00

Table 16. Direct influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of households

Source: Tables A.1.11 and A.1.12

(columns dich, corresponding to column 15, in both Table 4 and Table 5).

In this scenario, Table 16 shows, through the average expenditure propensities, the direct influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of households – for instance in the social benefits paid by the government. Thus, more than a half (0.64 in 1995; 0.66 in 2005) of that unit is spent in final consumption and a significant part of the remainder represents current transfers to the government. Therefore, the direct effect of an increase in the current expenditures of the government, through an increase in the social benefits paid by the government to households, mainly means an increase in the final consumption expenditure and in the current receipts of households and, consequently, in the current receipts of the government (coming from households' current transfers). Just as was seen in scenario A, this impact on the current receipts of the government cannot be measured using the multiplier methodology, since the accounts of the government are exogenous.

Tables 17 and 18 quantify and decompose the global influence of such changes on the endogenous accounts.

	1995	2005
Aggregate Demand/Supply	2.897	2.467
Production Value/Total Costs	2.294	1.926
Aggregate Factors Income		
– Labour	0.512	0.472
– Own Assets	0.492	0.403
Aggregate Income		
– of the households	1.875	1.726
<ul> <li>– of the other institutions (except government)</li> </ul>	0.296	0.233

	1995	2005
Aggregate Investment/Investment Funds		
– of the households	0.212	0.139
- of the other institutions (except government)	0.185	0.132

Source: Tables A.1.13 and A.1.14

(columns dich, corresponding to column 15, in both Table 4 and Table 5).

In this case, apart from the effect on the aggregate income of households, where 1 is the initial injection of income, the greatest effects (of unitary changes in the current receipts of households) were felt in a similar way to scenario A, but now more than twice as intensely at the level of the aggregate demand (supply) and production values (total costs), reflecting the great importance of final consumption for the total current outlays of the households, as seen in Table 13.

In this scenario, a general decrease in the global effects can also be noted from 1995 to 2005. This is shown in Table 18, where, at all levels of impact, the additional extragroup influences are dominant; the intergroup effects are almost insignificant and the intragroup effects almost null. Therefore, as was seen in scenario A, most of the repercussions originating from the current account of households do not return to it.

	1995				2005	
	intra	inter	extra	intra	inter	extra
Aggregate Demand/Supply	0	0.462	2.435	0	0.387	2.079
Production Value/Total Costs	0	0.321	1.973	0	0.248	1.678
Aggregate Factors Income						
– Labour	0	0.090	0.423	0	0.080	0.392
– Own Assets	0	0.093	0.398	0	0.078	0.325
Aggregate Income						
– of the households	0.006	0.164	0.705	0.006	0.128	0.592
– of the other institutions	0	0.053	0.243	0	0.039	0.194
(except government)						
Aggregate Investment/						
/Investment Funds						
– of the households	0	0.031	0.181	0	0.020	0.119
– of the other institutions	0	0.045	0.140	0	0.031	0.101
(except government)						

 Table 18. Additional group influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of households

Source: Tables A.1.15-A.1.20

(columns dich, corresponding to column 15, in both Table 4 and Table 5)

*Structural path analysis* helps us to understand these effects, through the schematic representation of the direct influences shown in Figure 2, which represents the network of elementary paths and adjacent circuits linking endogenous accounts, with special emphasis being placed on the current account of households.

Figure 2. Scenario B - Network of elementary paths and adjacent circuits linking endogenous



Note: This outline represents only the *paths* whose poles of origin <u>and</u> destination are the endogenous accounts.

Source: Tables A.1.13. and A.1.14. (values in brackets)

Table 16 shows that the direct influences of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of households were centred mainly on their final consumption, thus underlining the importance of group 2, relating to manufactured products and energy products (as well as products from mining and quarrying). The cells (dich, p2) of the corresponding accounting multipliers were decomposed through *structural path analysis*, in keeping with equation (20), paying special attention to the accounts of that group of products and of households. The results are shown in Table 19.

	1995	2005
Accounting Multiplier	1.521	1.187
Path 1 (dich $\rightarrow p2$ )		
$I^T = I^D * Mp$	1.086	0.894
$I^D$	0.366	0.342
Мр	2.967	2.611
Path 2 (dich $\rightarrow$ dikh $\rightarrow$ p2)		
$I^T = I^D * Mp$	0.047	0.020
$I^D$	0.016	0.008
Мр	2.978	2.624
Other Paths (dich $\rightarrow \dots \rightarrow p2$ )		
$I^T$	0.388	0.273

**Table 19**. Structural path analysis of the global influences on aggregate demand of unitary changes in the exogenous current receipts of households

Source: Tables A.1.13 and A.1.14.

The studied *paths* can be identified in Figure 2, in which the other linkages between endogenous accounts can also be identified. Almost all of the global influence is centred on *path 1*, which directly links the current account of the households (dich) to the account of products 2 (p2); *path 2*, which makes the same link through the capital account of the households, has an almost insignificant (global) influence, especially if compared with the *other paths*. Mention should be made here of the values of the *path multipliers*, which, besides confirming the already identified importance of the additional extragroup and intergroup influences in the additional decomposition of the accounting multipliers, show the important role played by those paths in the amplification of these effects through the adjacent feedback circuits.

As in scenario A, it is important to bear in mind that, with this methodology, apart from the unitary change in the current expenditures of the government, through the increase in the social benefits paid by the government to households (which is a direct effect), nothing more can be measured in terms of the global effects of that measure on the government's aggregate income and aggregate investment/investment funds, since their current and capital accounts were set as exogenous.

#### 3.2. The SAM-based linear model

This model was first developed by the author of this paper in Santos (2008) and Santos (2009), with the same basic structure but with some more details, especially in the latter study, associated with a more disaggregated numerical version, which was not possible here due to the unavailability of data for 2005. However, the author believes that this will not affect the purpose of understanding its results and of comparing them with those of the alternative methodology developed in the previous section (3.1).

As can be confirmed by comparing the structure of this model with the structure of the underlying database, or numerical version, presented in section 2, all the transactions of the national accounts are identified, although a significant part are still considered as exogenous. Parameters were calculated from the data used for the construction of the numerical versions, from which the exogenous variables were also identified.

The GAMS (General Algebraic Modelling System) software was used to run this model – firstly to calibrate it and then to perform the experiments associated with the described scenarios.

In this version of the model, it will be assumed that all domestically produced output is market output, and therefore any output produced for own final use and other non-market output will be considered as non-existent – the author hopes that this assumption can be eliminated in a future version of this model. On the other hand, since there is sufficient production capability available in the economy and imports are exogenous, domestic output will respond exclusively to aggregate demand.

		р	а	f	dic	dik	dif	rw	total
p – pro	p – products		t <sub>pa</sub>	0	t <sub>p dic</sub>	t <sub>p dik</sub>	0	t <sub>prw</sub>	t <sub>p.</sub>
a – acti	vities	t <sub>ap</sub>	0	0	0	0	0	0	t <sub>a.</sub>
f – fact	ors of production	0	t <sub>fa</sub>	0	0	0	0	$t_{\rm frw}$	t <sub>f.</sub>
dic – cu instituti	urrent account of the (domestic)	t <sub>dic p</sub>	t <sub>dica</sub>	t <sub>dic f</sub>	t <sub>dicdic</sub>	0	0	t <sub>dic rw</sub>	t <sub>dic.</sub>
dik – ca instituti	apital account of the (domestic)	0	0	0	t <sub>dik dic</sub>	t <sub>dik dik</sub>	t <sub>dikdif</sub>	t <sub>dik rw</sub>	t <sub>dik.</sub>
dif – fii instituti	nancial account of the (domestic)	0	0	0	0	0	t <sub>difdif</sub>	t <sub>dif rw</sub>	t <sub>dif.</sub>
rw – rest of the world		t <sub>rwp</sub>	t <sub>rwa</sub>	t <sub>rw f</sub>	t <sub>rw dic</sub>	t <sub>rw dik</sub>	t <sub>rw dif</sub>	$\ge$	t <sub>rw.</sub>
total			t. <i>a</i>	t <sub>f</sub>	t <sub>.dic</sub>	t <sub>.dik</sub>	t <sub>dif</sub>	t <sub>rw</sub>	$\ge$
cell	cellEquations (or exogenous variables) See "conventions and declarations" in the Appendix (A.2.3.)								Eq.n°
to	Gross Added Value								
u <sub>fa</sub>	$GAV_{f,a} = dbs_{f,a} * GAV_a$								(22)
	$GAV_a = \beta_a * VP_a$								(23)
	$GAV_f = \Sigma_a GAV_{f,a}$						(24)		
$t_{\mathrm{frw}}$	Compensation of Factors (Received) from the rest of the world								
	CFR <sub>f,rw</sub>								
$t_{dicf}$	Gross National Income								(25)
	$GNI_{dic,f} = cf_{dic,f} * GNI_{f}$								(25)

Table 20. The formalized transactions (cells) in the basic SAM

cell	Equations (or exogenous variables)	Ea nº					
	See "conventions and declarations" in the Appendix (A.2.3.)						
	$GNI_{f} = GAV_{f} + CFR_{f,rw} - CFS_{rw,f}$	(26)					
	$GNI_{dic} = \Sigma_f GNI_{dic,f}$	(27)					
	$GNI = \Sigma_{dic} GNI_{dic}$	(28)					
t <sub>rw f</sub>	Compensation of Factors (Sent) to the rest of the world						
	<i>CFS</i> <sub>rw,f</sub>						
Prod	uction						
t <sub>ap</sub>	$VP_p = AD_p - TMT_p - NTP_p - IM_p$	(29)					
	$VP_{a,p} = VP_p * \alpha_{a,p}$	(30)					
	$VP_a = \Sigma_p VP_{a,p}$	(31)					
Exter	nal Trade	I					
tprw	Exports						
_	<i>EX</i> <sub>p,rw</sub>						
t <sub>rwp</sub>	Imports						
(part)	<i>IM</i> <sub>rw,p</sub>						
Net in	ndirect taxes or net taxes on production and imports						
Net Ta	ixes on Production (of Activities)						
t <sub>dica</sub>	$NTA_{dic,a} = ntag_{dic,a} * NTAA_a$	(32)					
	$NTA_{dic} = \Sigma_a NTA_{dic,a}$	(33)					
	$NTA_a = \Sigma_{dic} NTA_{dic,a}$	(34)					
t <sub>rwa</sub>	$NTA_{rw,a} = ntarw_{rw,a} * NTAA_a$	(35)					
	$NTA_{rw} = \Sigma_a NTA_{rw,a}$	(36)					
	$NTA = \Sigma_{dic} NTA_{dic} + NTA_{rw}$	(37)					
Net Ta	ixes on Products	-					
t <sub>dic p</sub>	$NTP_{dic,p} = ntpg_{dic,p} * NTP_p$	(38)					
	$NTP_{dic} = \Sigma_p NTP_{dic,p}$	(39)					
t <sub>rwp</sub>	$NTP_{rw,p} = ntprw_{rw,p} * NTP_p$	(40)					
(part)	$NTP_{rw} = \Sigma_p NTP_{rw,p}$	(41)					
	$NTP_p = tp_p * DT_p$	(42)					
	$NTP = \Sigma_{dic}NTP_{dic} + NTP_{rw}$	(43)					
Trad	e and Transport Margins						
t <sub>pp</sub>	$TM_{p,p} = tmr_{p,p}*DT_p$	(44)					
	$TMP_p = \sum_p TM_{p,p}$ (column sum)	(45)					
Dome	Domestic Trade						
	$DTmp_p = VIC_p + FC_p + GCF_p$	(46)					
	$DT_p = DTmp_p - TMP_p - NTP_p$	(47)					
t <sub>na</sub>	(Value of) Intermediate Consumption	l					

cell	Equations (or exogenous variables)	
cen	See "conventions and declarations" in the Appendix (A.2.3.)	Eq.n°
	$\operatorname{VIC}_a = \gamma_a * \operatorname{VP}_a$	(48)
	$VIC_{p,a} = icp_{p,a}*VIC_a$	(49)
	$VIC_p = \Sigma_a VIC_{p,a}$	(50)
	$VIC = \sum_{p} \sum_{a} VIC_{p,a}$	(51)
t <sub>p dic</sub>	Final Consumption	
-	$FC_{dic} = apc_{dic} * DI_{dic}$	(52)
	$FC_{p,dic} = fcs_{p,dic} * FC_{dic}$	(53)
t <sub>n dik</sub>	Gross Capital Formation	
pene	$GCF_{p,dik} = gfcf_{p,dik} * P51_{dik} + P52_{p} * chinv_{p,dik} + adv_{p,dik} * P53_{dik}$	(54)
	$GCF_{dik} = \Sigma_p GCF_{p,dik}$	(55)
	$P52_{p} = chinvc_{p}*AS_{p}$	(56)
	$P53_{dik} = advc_{dik} * S_{dik}$	(57)
Curre	ent Transfers	
t <sub>dicdic</sub>	$CT_{dic,dic} = d5s_{dic,dic} * D5_{dic} + d61s_{dic,dic} * D61_{dic} + d62s_{dic,dic} * D62P_{dic} + d7s_{dic} * D7P_{dic} + D8s_{dic} +$	(58)
	$D5_{dic} = ti_{dic} * AI_{dic}$	(59)
	$D61_{dic} = sc_{dic} * GNI_{dic}$	(60)
	$CTR_{dic} = \Sigma_{dic} CT_{dic,dic}$	(61)
	$CTP_{dic} = \Sigma_{dic} CT_{dic,dic}$	(62)
t <sub>dic rw</sub>	$CT_{dic,rw} = D5RW_{dic,rw} + D61RW_{dic,rw} + D62RW_{dic,rw} + D7RW_{dic,rw}$	(63)
t <sub>rw dic</sub>	$CT_{rw,dic} = d5rws_{rw,dic}*D5_{dic} + d61rws_{rw,dic}*D61_{dic} + d62rws_{rw,dic}*D62P_{dic} + d7rws_{rw,dic}*D7P_{dic}$	(64)
	$FC_{rw,dic} = fcsrw_{rw,dic} * FC_{dic}$	(65)
Capit	al Transfers	
t <sub>dik ik</sub>	$KT_{dik,dik} = d91_{dik,dik} *D91P_{dik} +D92R_{dik}*d92_{dik,dik} + D99R_{dik}*d99_{dik,dik}$	(66)
	$D91P_{dik} = tk_{dik} * D99R_{dik}$	(67)
	$D92R_{dik} = cgfcf_{dik}*P5I_{dik}$	(68)
	$KTR_{dik} = \Sigma_{dik} KT_{dik,dik}$	(69)
	$KTP_{dik} = \Sigma_{dik} KT_{dik,dik}$	(70)
t <sub>dik rw</sub>	$KT_{dik,rw} = D92R_{dik} * d92rw_{dik,rw} + D99R_{dik} * d99rw_{dik,rw}$	(71)
t <sub>rw dik</sub>	$KT_{rw,dik} = D92P_{rw,dik} + D99P_{rw,dik} + K2_{rw,dik}$	(72)
Gross	Saving	
t <sub>dik dic</sub>	$S_{dik,dic} = si_{dik,dic} * S_{dic}$	(73)
	$S_{dik} = \Sigma_{dik} S_{dik,dic}$	(74)
	$S_{dic} = (1 - apc_{dic}) * DI_{dic}$	(75)

cell	Equations (or exogenous variables)	Eq n <sup>0</sup>
	See "conventions and declarations" in the Appendix (A.2.3.)	Eq.n
	$S = \Sigma_{dic} S_{dic} = \Sigma_{dik} S_{dik}$	(76)
Finan	icial Transactions	-
t <sub>difdif</sub>	$FT_{ m dif}$	
t <sub>dif rw</sub>	$FTRW_{dif,rw} = FT_{rw,dif} + NLB_{dif}$	(77)
t <sub>rw dif</sub>	<i>FT</i> <sub>rw,dif</sub>	
Net b	orrowing/lending	
t <sub>dikdif</sub>	$NLB_{dik,dif} = AINV_{dik} - (S_{dik} + KTR_{dik} + KT_{dik,rw})$	(78)
	$NLB_{dif} = \Sigma_{dik} NLB_{dik,dif}$	(79)
Row	totals	
t <sub>p.</sub>	Aggregate Demand	
	$AD_{p} = VIC_{p} + FC_{p} + GCF_{p} + EX_{p,rw}$	(80)
t <sub><i>a</i>.</sub>	Production Value	1
	$VPT_a = \Sigma_p VP_{ap}$	(81)
t <sub>f.</sub>	Aggregate Factors Income (Received)	
	$AFIR_{f} = GAV_{f} + CFR_{f,rw}$	(82)
t <sub>dic.</sub>	Aggregate Income	
	$AI_{dic} = GNI_{dic} + NTA_{dic} + NTP_{dic} + CTR_{dic} + CT_{dic,rw}$	(83)
t <sub>dik.</sub>	Investment Funds	
	$INVF_{dik} = S_{dik} + KTR_{dik} + NLB_{dik,dif} + KT_{dik,rw}$	(84)
t <sub>dif.</sub>	Total Financial Transactions (Received)	
	$\mathrm{TFTR}_{\mathrm{dif}} = FT_{\mathrm{dif},\mathrm{dif}} + \mathrm{FTRW}_{\mathrm{dif},\mathrm{rw}}$	(85)
t <sub>rw.</sub>	Value of Transactions to the Rest of the World (Paid)	
	$TVRWP_{rw} = CFS_{rw,f} + \Sigma_a NTA_{rw,a} + \Sigma_p (NTP_{rw,p} + IM_{rw,p})$ $+ \Sigma_a (CT + EC) + \Sigma_a KT + ET$	(86)
Colur	$+ \mathcal{L}_{dic} \left( C 1_{rw,dic} + \Gamma C_{rw,dic} \right) + \mathcal{L}_{dik} \mathbf{K} 1_{rw,dik} + \Gamma 1_{rw,dif}$	
t	Aggregate Supply	
ιp	$AS_{p} = VP_{p} + TMT_{p} + NTP_{p} + IM_{rw,p}$	(87)
t	Total Costs	
ι <u>.</u> α	$VCT_{a} = GAV_{a} + VIC_{a} + NTA_{a} + NTA_{max}$	(88)
		(00)
$t_{\rm f}$	Aggregate Factors Income (Paid)	(00)
	$AFIP_f = GNI_f + CFS_{rw,f}$	(89)
t <sub>.dic</sub>	Aggregate Income	
	$AIP_{dic} = FC_{dic} + CTP_{dic} + S_{dic} + (CT_{rw,dic} + FC_{rw,dic})$	(90)
t <sub>.dik</sub>	Aggregate Investment	
	$AINV_{dik} = GCF_{dik} + KTP_{dik} + KT_{rw,dik}$	(91)
t <sub>dif.</sub>	Total Financial Transactions (Paid)	
	$TFTP_{dif} = NLB_{dif} + FT_{dif,dif} + FT_{rw,dif}$	(92)
t <sub>rw</sub>	Value of Transactions from the Rest of the World (Received)	
- 144	$TVRWR_{rw} = CFR_{f,rw} + \Sigma_p EX_{p,rw} + \Sigma_{dic}CT_{dic,rw} + \Sigma_{dik} KT_{dik,rw} + FTRW_{dif,rw}$	(93)
		1

Sources: Santos (2008a and 2009a)

#### **3.3. Accounting multipliers and the SAM-based linear model**

Comparing the two SAM-based modelling methodologies described above, besides the common assumptions referred to at the beginning of Section 3, the existence of many fixed parameters in the linear model and fixed average expenditure propensities in the multipliers can be considered to be amongst its strongest and most limitative assumptions.

Special mention should be made of the financial transactions and of the transactions with the rest of the world: all of these are considered as exogenous in the accounting multipliers and almost all of them are considered as exogenous in the SAM-based linear model.

On the other hand, using the methodology of multipliers, shocks can only be performed on matrix X (transactions between exogenous and endogenous accounts - injections from first into second) and therefore the account of origin of the flow to be studied has to be set as exogenous. This means that, at the level of that account, all that can be measured is the direct influence of that shock. The global effect and the corresponding intra, inter and extragroup influences resulting from the impact of the same shock on the destination are not considered. This does not happen with the linear model, with which shocks can be performed using specific parameters (and exogenous variables) within specific SAM cells and not within SAM accounts. Therefore, more impacts can be measured with the linear model.

From the reading of the first results of the multipliers and its components, it is easy to gain an idea of the path of the impact of a unitary change, which is very useful in analysing and understanding the scenarios that result from the experiments.

# 4. Quantifying effects of social policy measures using macroeconomic aggregates and balances

Section 2 identified two scenarios associated with two experiments, using the two SAM algebraic versions described above. The results of those experiments will be measured at the level of macroeconomic aggregates and balances, which can be calculated either from the cells of the (recalculated) SAMs or by extending the linear model with the equations of Appendix A.2.2 – the latter form of calculation can also be seen as the methodology underlying the former. In these experiments, shocks will be performed on the current transfers within domestic institutions (see cell (dic,dic) in Tables 1 and 2); more precisely, on the current transfers between government and households (see cell (18, 15 and 15, 18) in Tables 4 and 5).

Scenario A admits a reduction of 1% in the rate of direct taxes paid by households to the government, i.e. from 0.0645 to 0.0545, in 1995; from 0.0597 to 0.0497, in 2005. In absolute

terms, households paid/the government received less:  $764.13*10^6 \in$  in 1995 and  $1385.45*10^6 \in$  in 2005.

Thus, in the case of the multipliers, using the methodology described in Section 3.1 a) and c), in each year, the SAM cell (18, 15), in the X matrix, was recalculated, as well as the corresponding x vector. From equation (7),  $y_n$  was recalculated, using the accounting multipliers matrix (M<sub>a</sub>) referred to in Section 3.1.c) (Tables A.1.3 and A.1.4). Besides the R matrix, which did not change, the remaining part of the SAM, i.e. the N and L matrices, were recalculated from equations (5) and (10), using the average expenditure propensities matrices (A<sub>n</sub> and A<sub>l</sub>) referred to in Section 3.1.c) (Tables A.1.1 and A.1.2).

In the case of the linear model, in equation (59),  $ti_{dich}$  was changed and the model was run subsequently.

With a reduction in the rate of direct taxes paid by households to the government, the receipts of the former will increase (due to their reduced expenditure) and those of the latter will decrease. Speaking about income in general and current income in particular, as seen in Section 2.1, we are dealing with an item that is one of the main sources of government income (current transfers from households) and yet is not very important in the case of household budgets. On the other hand, as seen in Section 3.1 c), the direct effect of changes in the government's (current) income are felt mainly at the level of final consumption (of which approximately 60% will be transformed into social transfers in kind to households and more than a quarter is expended in current transfers (in cash) to households). However, the global repercussions of this (direct) effect cannot be calculated using the methodology of multipliers, because the households' (current and capital) accounts had to be set as exogenous, but they can be calculated using the linear model, despite its (many) exogenous parameters and variables.

Tables 21 and 22 summarise the impacts at the level of macroeconomic aggregates and balances.

**Table 21.** Impacts of a reduction (of 1%) in the rate of direct taxes paid by households to thegovernment on macroeconomic aggregates in 1995 and 2005.

Macroeconomic Aggregates	1995			2005			
	$10^6 \in$	$10^6 \notin$ percentage change		$10^6 \in$	$10^6 \in$ percentage chan		
	experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers	experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers	
Gross domestic product at market prices (GDP)	80 827	- 1.34	- 0.55	149 123	- 2.13	- 0.49	
Gross national income (at market prices) (GNIMP)	80 479	- 1.35	- 0.54	146 224	- 2.17	- 0.48	

#### 1995 2005 Macroeconomic 10<sup>6</sup>€ percentage change 10<sup>6</sup>€ percentage change Aggregates (before the (before the L.Model Multipliers L.Model Multipliers experiment) experiment) 103 239 - 0.48 57 857 0.13 0.11 0.14 Households Gross Disposable Income (DI) Non-financial 9 3 4 2 - 1.15 - 0.28 9884 - 2.40 - 0,25 corporations Financial 1 558 - 2.37 - 3.37 - 0.17 4 0 7 2 - 0.18 corporations of: General 27 199 13 371 - 7.57 - 3.24 - 8.39 - 2.72 government Non-profit institu-1 388 - 0.10 - 2.04 3 3 1 2 - 0.54 - 0.82 tions serving households 83 517 147 706 Total - 1.30 - 0.51 - 2.14 - 0.44

#### A quantitative approach to the effects of social policy measures. An application to Portugal, using Social Accounting Matrices. (SSantos, July 2010)

Source: Tables 4 and 5 and other data provided by Statistics Portugal (*INE*) (Portuguese National

Accounts) for the calculation of the parameters used in the model defined in Section 3.2 (from which the values shown in this table were derived).

Therefore, the negative percentage changes felt at the level of all the macroeconomic aggregates represented in Table 21, except the households' DI, confirm the importance of direct taxes for the government's budget and the direct and global influence caused by a change in their value. Mention should also be made of the high values of the changes taking place in the government's DI and in the other institutions' DI, except that of households, as well as in the GDP and GNIMP. This also confirms the importance of the additional extragroup and intergroup influences, identified in Section 3.1c) with the decomposition of the accounting multipliers and the *structural path analysis* that was carried out. The higher values in the percentage changes calculated from the linear model are certainly explained by the above-mentioned effects, quantified by this analysis and not by the multipliers, due to the fact that the accounts of the households were set as exogenous. We are thinking here about the effects of the increase on the receipts of households, resulting from the reduction in their expenditures, and of the decrease in current transfers (in cash and in kind) from the government, (directly) resulting from the reduction in the latter's receipts. All of these aspects can be better understood with an analysis of the changes in the budgets of the institutions.

Table 22. Impacts of a reduction (of 1%) in the rate of direct taxes paid by households to the

Macroeconomic balances		1995			2005			
		10 <sup>6</sup> €	percenta	ge change	10 <sup>6</sup> €	percentage change		
		(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers	(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers	
	Households	7 952	0.13	0.00	9 544	- 0.48	0.00	
ce or of:	Non-financial corporations	9 342	- 1.15	- 0.28	9 884	- 2.40	- 0.25	
balan aving	Financial corporations	1 558	- 2.37	- 0.17	4 072	- 3.37	- 0.18	
rrent ross S	General government	- 1661	- 7.57	- 3.24	- 4 775	- 8.39	- 2.72	
Cui	NPISHs	100	- 0.10	- 2.04	300	- 0.54	- 0.82	
•	Total (S)	17 291	- 0.05	0.13	19 025	- 0.11	0.50	
	Households	- 3 929	- 0.02	- 0.00	- 4 818	- 0.01	0.00	
ce of:	Non-financial corporations	- 9292	- 0.03	- 0.29	- 18 642	- 0.02	- 0.13	
oalan	Financial corporations	- 1 271	- 0.01	- 0.20	- 3 391	- 0.03	- 0.21	
pital l	General government	- 2 761	0.00	1.95	- 4 248	- 0.02	3.06	
Ca	NPISHs	- 77	- 0.09	- 2.65	- 260	- 0.17	- 0.95	
	Total	- 17 332	- 0.02	0.13	- 31 359	- 0.02	0.31	
<u>t</u> (-)	Households	4 023	0.27	0.00	4 725	- 0.95	0.00	
or <u>Ne</u> <u>owing</u>	Non-financial corporations	49	- 211.13	0.00	- 8 758	2.68	0.00	
<b>ance</b> / <u>Borr</u> of:	Financial corporations	287	- 12.83	0.00	681	- 19.99	0.00	
al bal ling(+)	General government	- 4 423	- 2.85	0.00	- 9 023	- 4.45	0.00	
<b>Tot</b> enc	NPISHs	23	- 0.17	0.00	41	- 2.89	0.00	
L,	Total (NLB)	- 40	11.18	0.00	- 12 335	0.12	0.00	

government on macroeconomic balances in 1995 and 2005.

Source: see Table 21.

Thus, in the multiplier columns, the zero percentage changes in the budget balances of the households and the total balances of all the institutions result from the fact that the (current and capital) accounts of the households and the financial accounts are considered exogenous. The differences between these values and those that result from the use of the linear model undeniably have the same explanation as the one that is given for the differences between the macroeconomic aggregates.

Therefore, a social policy measure, such as the one studied in this scenario, which is designed to immediately improve the financial conditions of people, and whose first (direct) impact produces this effect, also has impacts at other levels and on the economy as a whole that, in the end,

worsen the situation. Nonetheless, it may be a plausible contribution for explaining the evolution of the Portuguese economy and its net borrowing.

Scenario B admits an increase of 1% in the social benefits other than social transfers in kind received by households from the government, i.e. a rise from 9485 to  $9580*10^6$ € in 1995; from 22121 to  $22342*10^6$ € in 2005. In other words, households received/the government paid more:  $94.85*10^6$ € in 1995 and  $221.21*10^6$ € in 2005).

In this case, in each year, the calculations made using the multiplier methodology followed the procedure outlined in Sections 3.1 a) and d), changing the cell (15, 18), in the X matrix of the SAM and recalculating the corresponding x vector. With equations (7), (5) and (10) and using the accounting multipliers matrix ( $M_a$ ) (Tables A.1.13 and A.1.14) and the average expenditure propensities matrices ( $A_n$  and  $A_l$ ) referred to in Section 3.1.d) (Tables A.1.11 and A.1.12), the  $y_n$  vector and the N and L matrices were respectively recalculated.

In the case of the linear model, after the change of  $D62P_{dicg}$  in equation (58). this scenario was subsequently run through the model.

With the increase in the social benefits other than social transfers in kind received by households from the government, the receipts of the former will increase and those of the latter will decrease. Considering income in general and current income in particular, from what was seen in Section 2.1, we are dealing with an item that is one of the main sources of government expenditure (current transfers to households) and yet is not very important in the households' budget. In Section 3.1 d) the direct and global effects of changes in households' (current) income were analysed, in which the significant role of final consumption was identified, as well as its consequent impact on aggregate demand/supply and production value/total costs – the columns of percentage changes with multipliers in Tables 23 and 24, reflect and confirm this analysis. However, neither the global repercussions of the direct effect of changes in households' (current) income on their current transfers to the government (Table 16) nor the direct and global effects of the decrease in the government's income that result from this social policy measure are covered by the multiplier methodology. From the point of view of the author of this paper, this is the explanation for the negative values of the percentage changes calculated with the linear model, which have exogenous parameters and variables instead of accounts and can explain these effects, at least in part.

Table 23. Impacts of an increase (of 1%) in the social benefits other than social transfers in kind received by households from the government on macroeconomic aggregates in 1995 and 2005.

ז	Macroeconomic		1995			2005	
1	Aggregates	10 <sup>6</sup> €	percentag	ge change	10 <sup>6</sup> €	percenta	ige change
	1951054005	(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers	(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers
Gross at ma	s domestic product arket prices (GDP)	80 827	- 0.16	0.14	149 123	- 0.34	0.15
Gross (at m (GNI	s national income arket prices) MP)	80 479	- 0.16	0.13	146 224	- 0.34	0.14
I),	Households	57 857	0.01	0.23	103 239	- 0.08	0.27
me (D	Non-financial corporations	9 342	- 0.14	0.14	9 884	- 0.38	0.16
e Incoi	Financial corporations	1 558	- 0.28	0.18	4 072	- 0.54	0.19
osable of:	General government	13 371	- 0.89	- 0.36	27 199	- 1.30	- 0.39
oss Disp	Non-profit institu- tions serving households	1 388	- 0.01	0.08	3 312	- 0.09	0.15
Ğ	Total	83 517	- 0.15	0.12	147 706	- 0.34	0.14

Source: see Table 21.

Table 24. Impacts of an increase (of 1%) in the social benefits other than social transfers in kind received by households from the government the macroeconomic balances in 1995 and 2005.

			1995			2005	
Macroe	conomic balances	10 <sup>6</sup> €	percenta	ge change	10 <sup>6</sup> €	percenta	ige change
		(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers	(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers
	Households	7 952	0.01	0.23	9 544	- 0.08	0.28
ice or g of:	Non-financial corporations	9 342	- 0.14	0.14	9 884	- 0.38	0.16
balar Saving	Financial corporations	1 558	- 0,28	0.18	4 072	- 0.54	0.19
rrent	General government	- 1661	- 0.89	0.00	- 4 775	- 1.30	0.00
Cu	NPISHs	100	- 0.01	0.08	300	- 0.09	0.15
-	Total (S)	17 291	- 0.01	0.20	19 025	- 0.03	0.26

			1995			2005	
Macroe	conomic balances	10 <sup>6</sup> €	percentag	ge change	10 <sup>6</sup> €	percenta	ige change
		(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers	(before the experiment)	L.Model	Multipliers
	Households	- 3 929	0.00	0.47	- 4 818	0.00	0.55
<b>ce</b> of:	Non-financial corporations	- 9292	0.00	0.14	- 18 642	0.00	0.08
balan	Financial corporations	- 1 271	0.00	0.22	- 3 391	- 0.01	0.23
pital	General government	- 2 761	- 0.07	0.00	- 4 248	- 0.04	0.00
Ca	NPISHs	- 77	0.00	0.10	- 260	0.00	0.17
	Total	- 17 332	0.00	0.20	- 31 359	0.00	0.16
Ŀ It	Households	4 023	0.03	0.00	4 725	- 0.17	0.00
or <u>Ne</u> owing	Non-financial corporations	49	- 25.21	0.00	- 8 758	0.42	0.00
<b>lance</b> <u>//Borr</u> of:	Financial corporations	287	- 1,53	0.00	681	- 3.23	0.00
tal ba ding(+	General government	- 4 423	- 0.34	0.00	- 9 023	- 0.70	0.00
Tot	NPISHs	23	0.19	0.00	41	- 0.43	0.00
Ţ	Total (NLB)	- 40	2.03	0.00	- 12 335	0.03	0.00

Source: see Table 21.

Therefore, the low values of the percentage changes of the multipliers highlight the low importance of social benefits other than social transfers in kind in the households' budget and the non-consideration of their importance in the government's budget. Thus, the consideration of the importance of social benefits other than social transfers in kind in the government's budget by the linear model leads to percentage changes that compound those of the multipliers and worsen the situation of the economy in general and of households in particular.

The low percentage changes obtained with both methodologies are also explained by the low absolute changes associated with this measure (households received/the government paid more:  $94.85*10^6 \in$  in 1995 and  $221.21*10^6 \in$  in 2005), especially if compared with those of scenario A (households paid/the government received less:  $764.13*10^6 \in$  in 1995 and  $1385.45*10^6 \in$  in 2005).

# 5. Concluding Remarks

Constructed from the SNA, the numerical version of the SAM provided us not only with consistent databases for use in the SAM-based models, but also snapshots of the measured reality, from which different social policy measures and their corresponding scenarios could be identified.

From the snapshots of the two years that were studied, it was possible to see that in the functional distribution of income, labour (employees, essentially with lower and medium levels of education) accounted for more than a half, whereas in the institutional distribution of income, households accounted for more than three quarters, with those households where wages and salaries were the main source of income accounting for more than a half. Consequently, households accounted for most of the disposable income (almost 70%), which was almost completely spent on final consumption.

Due to the increased share of the final consumption expenditure of institutions, savings had a relatively lower share in the use of disposable income (20.7% in 1995 and 12.9% in 2005).

Despite the absence of any available information by groups of households, a significant (nominal and real) improvement was noted in *per capita* disposable income and final consumption (expenditure and actual) over the eleven years that were studied. The effects of social policy measures, which were certainly adopted for that improvement of the financial situation of people and therefore of households, were tested with flows of money directly involving government and households – direct taxes and social benefits.

Direct taxes and social benefits are current transfers between households and the government. They are, respectively, the main sources of income and expenditure of the latter, but they are not of great importance in the global budget of households, where the compensation of factors, mainly of labour, was the predominant concern. However, those flows were certainly significant in the budgets of some groups of households, in view of their levels of disposable income. Unfortunately, we have no information available about this, but its global impact can and should be studied.

Two alternative methodologies (SAM-based models or algebraic versions of the SAM) were used to study two scenarios resulting from the application of two social policy measures: scenario A, involving a decrease in direct taxes, in which households paid/the government received less:  $764.13*10^6$  in 1995 and  $1385.45*10^6$  in 2005; and scenario B, involving an increase in social benefits, in which households received/the government paid more:  $94.85*10^6$  in 1995 and  $221.21*10^6$  in 2005.

Although they have some common assumptions, the methodologies that were used – accounting multipliers and the linear model – are different, mainly because one (the accounting multipliers) works with endogenous and exogenous accounts (and fixed average expenditure propensities) while the other (the linear model) works with endogenous and exogenous parameters and variables. This means that, despite the limitations of the fixed parameters and variables of the latter model when shocks are introduced into certain flows of money, it can measure (at least in

part) effects that are not measured by the former and this can lead to different conclusions, which may be closer to the actual reality.

This seems to be empirically confirmed by the performance of the two experiments using those two methodologies and the measurement of their impacts (in terms of percentage changes) on the macroeconomic aggregates and balances. The interpretation of these results suggests that all these impacts were negative when measured with the linear model, whereas, when measured with multipliers, they were negative in scenario A and positive in scenario B. It would therefore seem that such differences are related to the impacts that were not measured with the accounting multipliers. Therefore, in scenario A, at the level of households, the methodology based on the use of multipliers only measured the above-mentioned reduction in the current transfers from households to the government and the consequent increase in its (aggregate and disposable) income, which does not have too much importance in terms of what is left out, because of the relative unimportance of direct taxes in the households' budget. This also explains the differences to be noted in relation to the results of the linear model, which were generally more negative. In turn, in scenario B, at the level of the government, the methodology based on the use of multipliers only measures the above-mentioned increase in current transfers from the government to households and the consequent decrease in the government's (aggregate and disposable) income, which is very important in terms of what is left out, because of the importance of social benefits in the government's budget. Again, this also explains the differences to be noted in comparison with the results of the linear model, which were generally negative.

With both methodologies, the impacts were lower in scenario B due to the lower absolute level of the shock that was introduced into the system.

All these results, and particularly those obtained from the application of the linear model, may provide a plausible explanation for the evolution of the Portuguese economy and its net borrowing, in which the government played an important role.

Therefore, there is no doubt that social policy measures, such as the ones that have been examined in this paper, can contribute to greater social justice and equity if applied to certain groups of people (something that is unfortunately beyond the scope of this paper). However, the impacts of these measures at the macroeconomic level should not be disregarded, lest they be allowed to bias all the conclusions.

In this study, the analysis based on the use of multipliers, their components and the use of *structural path analysis* turned out to be fundamental for understanding the effects resulting from the two experiments, using both methodologies. Thus, research into the linear model will be

continued with the use of that methodology. Three main aspects are set to be studied in the next phase: flexibility of the fixed parameters and exogenous variables (time series for national accounting transactions are being collected in order to investigate econometric adjustments, marginal propensities and elasticities, as well as to obtain more information that will allow for a greater disaggregation of the financial account); consideration of the output produced for own final use and other non-market output; work undertaken with prices and quantities (developing the valuation system, as originally approached in Santos, 2009).

# References

Eurostat (1996), European System of Accounts (ESA 95). Eurostat, Luxembourg

Inter-Secretariat Working Group on National Accounts – ISWGNA (1993) *System of National Accounts* (1993 SNA) United Nations Statistics Division and the United Nations regional commissions, New York; International Monetary Fund – IMF, Washington, DC; World Bank, Washington, DC; Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development – OECD, Paris; Statistical Office of the European Communities – Eurostat, Brussels/Luxembourg.

Defourny, J. and Thorbecke, E. (1984) "Structural Path Analysis and Multiplier Decomposition within a Social Accounting Matrix Framework", *The Economic Journal*, 94: 111-136.

Pyatt, G. and Roe, A. (1977) *Social Accounting for Development Planning with special reference to Sri Lanka*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

Pyatt G. and Round J. (1985), Accounting and Fixed Price Multipliers in a Social Accounting Matrix Framework, in Pyatt G. and Round J. (eds.) - *Social Accounting Matrices. A Basis for Planning*, Washington, US, The World Bank: 186-206. Also in *Economic Journal* 89 (356): 850-873.

Santos S. (1999), "The Social Accounting Matrix as a working instrument to define economic policy. Application to Portugal during the 1986-90 period, with emphasis on the agroindustrial sector", PhD dissertation, ISEG-TULisboa, Lisbon, April 1999, 309pp. (only available in Portuguese)

Santos S. (2005), "Social Accounting Matrix and the System of National Accounts: An Application", Higher Institute of Economics and Business Administration. Working Paper No. 14/2005/ Department of Economics/Research Unit on Complexity and Economics - ISEG-TU Lisboa, 41pp.

Santos S. (2004), "Portuguese net borrowing and the government budget balance. A SAM approach", *Journal of Policy Modeling* 26: 703-717.

Santos S. (2007), "Modelling Economic Circuit Flows in a Social Accounting Matrix Framework. An Application to Portugal". *Applied Economics* 39: 1753-1771.

Santos S. (2007a), "Macro-SAMs for Modelling Purposes. An Application to Portugal in 2003", Working Paper No. 17/2007/ Department of Economics/Research Unit on Complexity and Economics - ISEG-TU Lisboa, 17pp.

Santos S. (2008), "A SAM-based Model, constructed from the SNA, to be used for studying the distributional impacts of government policies in Portugal". Working Paper Series – SSRN (Social Science Research Network) abstract=1159389, July 2008, 58pp.

Santos S. (2008a), "Better databases for economic modelling: constructing SAMs from the SNA" in Papanikos, G.T. (ed.) *Applied Economic Research*, Atiner, Athens (Greece), 2008, pp.193-198.

Santos S. (2009), *From the System of National Accounts (SNA) to a Social Accounting Matrix (SAM)-Based Model. An Application to Portugal*, Edições Almedina, Coimbra (Portugal), 194pp.

Santos S. (2009a), "Using a SAM-Based Model to measure the distributional impacts of government policies", Working Paper No. 31/2009/ Department of Economics/Research Unit on Complexity and Economics - ISEG-TULisboa, Lisbon, July 2009; (and) WPIOX (Working Papers in Input-Output Economics) 09-010/International Input-Output Association, September 2009, 33pp.

Stone R. (1985), The disaggregation of the household sector in the National Accounts, in Pyatt, G. and Round J. (coord.) - *Social Accounting Matrices. A Basis for Planning*, Washington, US, The World Bank, 145-185.

# Appendices

#### A.1. Accounting multipliers for Portugal in 1995 and 2005

#### Table A.1.1. Average expenditure propensities matrices – 1995 (Scenario A)

	p1	p2	р3	p4	p5	р6	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	a6	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
$A_n = 1$	∛*ŷn <sup>-1</sup>																					
p1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,09	0,08	0	0,01	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0
p2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,27	0,52	0,36	0,20	0,07	0,14	C	0	0	0	0,02	0	0,48	0,17	0,07	0,66
р3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,24	0,01	0,03	0,01	C	0	0	0	0	0	0,26	0,21	0,42	0,32
p4	0,14	0,14	0	-0,81	0	0	0,02	0	0	0,13	0,04	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0,02	0,01	0	0
p5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,02	0,1	0	0,1	0,36	0,10	C	0	0	0	0	0	0,10	0,05	0	0
рб	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0,03	0	C	0	0	0	0,46	0,88	0,01	0	0	0
a1	0,69	0,00	0,00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a2	0,00	0,54	0,00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3	0	0,00	0,96	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a4	0	0,00	0,00	1,71	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,82	0,00	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a6	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,03	0,98	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
fle	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,1	0,2	0,2	0,25	0,20	0,56	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
foa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,51	0,1	0,2	0,29	0,27	0,14	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicnfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0,33	0	0,08	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0,05	0,02	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicg	0,00	0,07	0,03	0,06	0,05	0,02	-0,02	0	0	0	0	0	C	-0,07	0,16	0,05	0,22	0	0	0	0	0
dicnp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0,03	0	0	0	0	0
diknfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0,70	0	0	0	0	0	0,12	0
dikfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0,36	0	0	0,04	0,16	0	0
dikg	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	-0,05	0	0,01	0	0,30	0,01
diknp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0,07	0	0	0,05	0
$A_1 = L$	$\hat{y}_n^{-1}$																					
dich	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0,60	0,10	0,47	0,31	0	0	0	0	0
dikh	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,39	0,03	0
dif	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
rw	0,17	0,24	0	0,05	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0,1	0,01	0	0,01	0	0,06	0,01	0,01	0
Sum																						
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1

Source: Table 4.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	p5	р6	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	a6	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
$A_n = 1$	∛*ŷn <sup>-1</sup>																					
p1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,14	0,06	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,27	0,56	0,32	0,19	0,04	0,12	0	0	0	0	0,03	0	0,41	0,05	0,11	0,47
р3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0,31	0,01	0,02	0,01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,35	0,12	0,44	0,37
p4	0,20	0,14	0	-0,65	0	0	0,02	0	0	0,13	0,03	0,1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0,01
p5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,06	0,1	0	0,15	0,28	0,09	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,14	0,01	0,01	0,09
рб	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0,01	0,1	0	0	0	0	0,50	0,82	0,01	0	0	0,06
a1	0,62	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a2	0	0,49	0,01	0,02	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3	0	0	0,94	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a4	0	0,01	0,01	1,51	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5	0	0	0,00	0,01	0,80	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a6	0	0	0,01	0,01	0,04	0,97	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
fle	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,11	0,2	0,2	0,29	0,20	0,56	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
foa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,47	0,1	0,1	0,21	0,41	0,13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicnfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,24	0,01	0,11	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,07	0,06	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicg	-0,02	0,08	0,03	0,06	0,06	0,02	-0,06	0	0	0	0	0	0	-0,01	0,25	0,05	0,13	0	0	0	0	0
dicnp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,02	0,03	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0
diknfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,55	0	0	0	0	0	0,17	0
dikfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,44	0	0	0	0,39	0	0
dikg	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-0,08	0	0	0,02	0,24	0,01
diknp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,09	0	0,01	0,02	0
$A_1 = L$	*Ŷn <sup>-1</sup>																					
dich	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0,50	0,10	0,37	0,38	0,01	0	0	0	0
dikh	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,34	0,03	0
dif	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
rw	0,20	0,28	0	0,04	0	0,01	-0,03	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,18	0,01	0,02	0,03	0	0,06	0,06	-0,03	0
Sum																						
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1

### Table A.1.2. Average expenditure propensities matrices – 2005 (Scenario A)

Source: Table 5.

	p1	p2	p3	p4	рŚ	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1	1,10	0,08	0,04	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,14	0,14	0,04	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,00	0,02	0,05	0,02	0,013	0,02	0,07	0,03	0,05	0,07
p2	0,51	1,60	0,81	0,49	0,35	0,32	0,63	0,95	0,83	0,52	0,37	0,32	0,00	0,26	0,79	0,28	0,182	0,39	1,08	0,55	0,93	1,34
p3	0,06	0,03	1,34	0,06	0,08	0,04	0,08	0,05	0,35	0,06	0,10	0,04	0,00	0,10	0,28	0,15	-0,037	0,07	0,40	0,35	0,90	0,46
p4	0,16	0,16	0,10	0,69	0,08	0,06	0,09	0,12	0,10	0,14	0,08	0,06	0,00	0,03	0,10	0,04	0,037	0,07	0,13	0,07	0,11	0,14
p5	0,10	0,13	0,16	0,21	1,50	0,18	0,11	0,17	0,16	0,22	0,58	0,19	0,00	0,07	0,21	0,08	0,113	0,22	0,27	0,16	0,17	0,14
рб	0,03	0,09	0,08	0,07	0,12	1,06	0,03	0,07	0,06	0,05	0,09	0,06	0,00	0,02	0,17	0,08	0,659	0,95	0,09	0,05	0,08	0,09
a1	0,76	0,06	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	1,10	0,10	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,00	0,01	0,04	0,01	0,010	0,02	0,05	0,02	0,04	0,05
a2	0,28	0,88	0,45	0,27	0,22	0,18	0,35	1,52	0,46	0,28	0,21	0,18	0,00	0,14	0,44	0,15	0,102	0,22	0,59	0,30	0,51	0,73
a3	0,06	0,03	1,29	0,06	0,08	0,03	0,07	0,05	1,34	0,06	0,09	0,04	0,00	0,10	0,27	0,14	-0,036	0,07	0,39	0,33	0,87	0,45
a4	0,27	0,28	0,18	1,18	0,17	0,11	0,16	0,22	0,18	1,25	0,16	0,11	0,00	0,06	0,18	0,06	0,066	0,12	0,23	0,13	0,19	0,25
a5	0,09	0,11	0,13	0,17	1,24	0,15	0,09	0,14	0,13	0,18	1,48	0,15	0,00	0,05	0,17	0,07	0,093	0,18	0,22	0,13	0,14	0,12
a6	0,04	0,10	0,09	0,08	0,16	1,05	0,03	0,07	0,07	0,06	0,11	1,06	0,00	0,02	0,18	0,08	0,647	0,93	0,10	0,06	0,09	0,10
fle	0,24	0,31	0,43	0,44	0,44	0,68	0,26	0,40	0,43	0,45	0,45	0,69	1,00	0,08	0,30	0,13	0,408	0,64	0,33	0,20	0,37	0,35
foa	0,55	0,29	0,39	0,47	0,46	0,26	0,70	0,39	0,40	0,49	0,51	0,26	0,00	1,08	0,25	0,10	0,149	0,26	0,32	0,19	0,34	0,32
dicnfc	0,18	0,10	0,13	0,16	0,15	0,09	0,23	0,13	0,13	0,16	0,17	0,09	0,00	0,36	1,09	0,12	0,050	0,09	0,11	0,06	0,11	0,11
dicfc	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,00	0,06	0,04	1,01	0,009	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
dicg	0,03	0,16	0,13	0,10	0,13	0,06	0,03	0,10	0,09	0,06	0,07	0,04	0,00	0,01	0,30	0,12	1,317	0,07	0,13	0,07	0,12	0,15
dicnp	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,038	1,00	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01
diknfc	0,13	0,07	0,09	0,11	0,11	0,06	0,16	0,09	0,09	0,11	0,12	0,06	0,00	0,25	0,76	0,08	0,023	0,06	1,08	0,04	0,24	0,08
dikfc	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,03	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,04	0,06	0,44	0,005	0,01	0,06	1,19	0,02	0,01
dikg	0,00	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	0,00	0,00	-0,01	-0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	-0,01	-0,01	-0,101	0,00	0,01	0,00	1,43	0,01
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	-0,002	0,07	0,00	0,00	0,07	1,00

Source: Tables 4 and A.1.1.

	p1	p2	p3	p4	p5	рб	al	a2	a3	a4	a5	ab	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1	1,11	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,17	0,10	0,03	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,007	0,02	0,04	0,01	0,03	0,04
p2	0,44	1,53	0,72	0,40	0,23	0,26	0,58	0,94	0,74	0,42	0,23	0,26	0,00	0,16	0,57	0,20	0,120	0,34	0,93	0,30	0,88	1,03
p3	0,06	0,03	1,44	0,06	0,08	0,03	0,08	0,05	0,47	0,06	0,09	0,04	0,00	0,09	0,29	0,17	-0,067	0,08	0,54	0,32	0,98	0,57
p4	0,21	0,17	0,10	0,75	0,06	0,07	0,11	0,14	0,10	0,15	0,06	0,07	0,00	0,02	0,08	0,03	0,039	0,08	0,13	0,04	0,12	0,13
p5	0,16	0,15	0,17	0,27	1,37	0,17	0,17	0,20	0,17	0,29	0,42	0,17	0,00	0,06	0,21	0,07	0,090	0,23	0,32	0,08	0,21	0,26
рб	0,03	0,11	0,09	0,09	0,12	1,10	0,05	0,09	0,08	0,07	0,09	0,09	0,00	0,07	0,25	0,08	0,642	0,94	0,11	0,04	0,10	0,16
a1	0,69	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	1,11	0,06	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,005	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,03
a2	0,22	0,75	0,37	0,21	0,13	0,13	0,29	1,46	0,37	0,21	0,12	0,13	0,00	0,08	0,28	0,10	0,061	0,17	0,46	0,15	0,45	0,51
a3	0,06	0,03	1,36	0,06	0,08	0,03	0,08	0,05	1,45	0,06	0,09	0,03	0,00	0,08	0,28	0,16	-0,063	0,08	0,51	0,30	0,92	0,53
a4	0,33	0,28	0,17	1,14	0,16	0,12	0,18	0,23	0,16	1,24	0,12	0,12	0,00	0,04	0,14	0,05	0,064	0,13	0,21	0,07	0,20	0,23
a5	0,13	0,12	0,14	0,22	1,09	0,14	0,14	0,16	0,14	0,23	1,34	0,14	0,00	0,05	0,17	0,05	0,072	0,18	0,26	0,07	0,17	0,21
a6	0,04	0,11	0,11	0,11	0,17	1,08	0,05	0,09	0,09	0,09	0,11	1,10	0,00	0,08	0,26	0,08	0,627	0,93	0,12	0,05	0,12	0,18
fle	0,27	0,30	0,49	0,49	0,40	0,69	0,29	0,40	0,50	0,51	0,39	0,70	1,00	0,09	0,32	0,12	0,380	0,64	0,37	0,15	0,43	0,40
foa	0,49	0,23	0,30	0,39	0,53	0,24	0,66	0,33	0,30	0,41	0,61	0,24	0,00	1,06	0,20	0,07	0,126	0,25	0,28	0,10	0,28	0,28
dicnfc	0,12	0,06	0,08	0,10	0,13	0,06	0,17	0,08	0,08	0,10	0,16	0,06	0,00	0,27	1,06	0,13	0,032	0,07	0,07	0,03	0,07	0,07
dicfc	0,04	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,05	0,02	0,06	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,06	0,02	0,00	0,10	0,08	1,02	0,012	0,03	0,03	0,01	0,03	0,03
dicg	0,03	0,18	0,15	0,13	0,17	0,07	0,04	0,13	0,12	0,09	0,11	0,05	0,00	0,09	0,39	0,12	1,187	0,10	0,15	0,05	0,15	0,16
dicnp	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,03	0,04	0,01	0,020	1,02	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01
diknfc	0,07	0,03	0,04	0,05	0,07	0,03	0,09	0,04	0,04	0,06	0,08	0,03	0,00	0,15	0,58	0,07	-0,004	0,03	1,04	0,02	0,27	0,04
dikfc	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,02	0,00	0,07	0,06	0,73	0,008	0,02	0,02	1,64	0,02	0,02
dikg	0,00	-0,02	-0,01	-0,01	-0,02	-0,01	0,00	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	0,00	-0,01	-0,04	0,00	-0,123	-0,01	-0,01	0,03	1,30	0,00
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	-0,001	0,09	0,00	0,02	0,03	1,00

Table A 1 A	Assounting	multipliana	matrix 2005	(Comorio A)	`
1 able A.1.4.	Accounting	muniphers	matrix = 2003	(SCENATIO A	J

Source: Tables 5 and A.1.2.

	p1	p	2	р3		p4	рŚ	рб	a1	a2	a3	ź	a4	a5	аб	fle	е	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1		0	0		0	0	0	0	(	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p2		0	0		0	0	0	0	(	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p3		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p4		0	0		0	-0,45	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p5		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
рб		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a1		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	D	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a2		0	0		0	0	0	0	(	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3		0	0		0	0	0	0	(	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a4		0	0		0	0	0	0	(	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a6		0	0		0	0	0	0	(	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
fle		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
foa		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicnfc		0	0		0	0	0	0	(	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0,004	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicfc		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicg		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0,284	0	0	0	0	0
dicnp		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0,00	0	0	0	0
diknfc		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dikfc		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,19	0	0
dikg		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,44	0
diknp		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	)	)	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Table A.1.5. Additional intragroup or direct effects ma	atrix $(M_1 - I) - 1995$ (Scenario A)
---	---------------------------------------

Source: Table A.1.1.

	<u>p1 p</u>	2 pî	<u>3 p</u>	<u>4 p</u>	5 <u>p</u>	<u>6</u> a	al a'	2 a	<u>3</u> a	1 <u>4</u> a	<u>ນ</u> ເ	<b>a</b> 6 i	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p4	0	0	0 -	0,39	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
рб	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
fle	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
foa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicnfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,007	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicg	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,151	0	0	0	0	0
dicnp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0	0
diknfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dikfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,63	0	0
dikg	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,31	0
diknp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

**Table A.1.6**. Additional intragroup or direct effects matrix  $(M_1 - I) - 2005$  (Scenario A)

Source: Table A.1.2.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	p5	рб	al	a2	a3	a4	a5	a6	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,005	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,02
p2	0,08	0,05	0,05	0,05	0,05	0,03	0,06	0,08	0,10	0,06	0,06	0,04	0,00	0,07	0,04	0,03	0,043	0,07	0,13	0,09	0,16	0,15
p3	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,003	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,04	0,02
p4	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,004	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01
p5	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,05	0,02	0,00	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,026	0,04	0,04	0,03	0,03	0,04
р6	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,006	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
a1	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,001	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00
a2	0,05	0,07	0,12	0,07	0,06	0,04	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,00	0,01	0,12	0,04	-0,001	0,02	0,03	0,01	0,06	0,03
a3	0,01	0,01	0,06	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,04	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,05	0,02	-0,008	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,02	0,01
a4	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,04	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,00	0,02	0,03	0,01	0,015	0,02	0,05	0,03	0,05	0,06
a5	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,05	0,09	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,05	0,02	0,005	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
aб	0,00	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,03	0,01	0,002	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,02	0,01
fle	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,05	0,06	0,04	0,06	0,03	0,00	0,05	0,03	0,02	0,040	0,07	0,08	0,05	0,09	0,09
foa	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,03	0,05	0,06	0,04	0,06	0,03	0,00	0,04	0,03	0,02	0,034	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,08	0,08
dicnfc	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,04	0,01	0,002	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02
dicfc	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,001	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
dicg	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,006	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01
dicnp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,000	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
diknfc	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,021	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,03
dikfc	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,002	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
dikg	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,000	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,000	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00

Table A.1.7. Additional intergroup	o or indirect effects matrix	$(M_2 - I) * M_1 -$	1995 (Scenario A)
------------------------------------	------------------------------	---------------------	-------------------

Source: Table A.1.1.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	p5	рб	al	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,003	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01
p2	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,06	0,08	0,10	0,05	0,04	0,03	0,00	0,05	0,02	0,03	0,033	0,06	0,13	0,05	0,14	0,14
p3	0,02	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,00	0,01	0,002	0,01	0,04	0,02	0,06	0,04
p4	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,004	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01
p5	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,022	0,04	0,04	0,01	0,04	0,04
рб	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,010	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
al	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,000	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
a2	0,04	0,05	0,10	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,08	0,03	-0,006	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,05	0,02
a3	0,01	0,01	0,09	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,06	0,03	-0,014	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,03	0,01
a4	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,04	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,03	0,01	0,011	0,02	0,05	0,02	0,05	0,05
a5	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,05	0,06	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,05	0,01	0,002	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,03	0,02
аб	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,04	0,01	0,000	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,02	0,01
fle	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,04	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,04	0,03	0,00	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,044	0,08	0,09	0,04	0,09	0,10
foa	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,04	0,03	0,00	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,033	0,06	0,07	0,02	0,06	0,07
dicnfc	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,001	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01
dicfc	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,001	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00
dicg	0,01	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,004	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
dicnp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,001	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
diknfc	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,010	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,02
dikfc	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,004	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01
dikg	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	-0,001	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,000	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00

Table A.1.8. Additional intergroup or indirect effects matrix (M<sub>2</sub> - I) \* M<sub>1</sub>- 2005 (Scenario A)

Source: Table A.1.2.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	рŚ	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1	0,09	0,08	0,04	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,13	0,13	0,03	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,00	0,01	0,05	0,01	0,008	0,02	0,05	0,02	0,04	0,05
p2	0,43	0,55	0,76	0,44	0,31	0,29	0,58	0,87	0,73	0,46	0,31	0,29	0,00	0,19	0,75	0,25	0,140	0,31	0,94	0,46	0,77	1,18
р3	0,03	0,02	0,33	0,04	0,06	0,03	0,07	0,04	0,33	0,06	0,08	0,03	0,00	0,08	0,27	0,14	-0,041	0,06	0,38	0,33	0,86	0,44
p4	0,14	0,15	0,08	0,12	0,07	0,05	0,08	0,11	0,09	0,13	0,07	0,06	0,00	0,03	0,08	0,03	0,033	0,06	0,12	0,06	0,09	0,13
p5	0,08	0,11	0,14	0,20	0,49	0,17	0,09	0,15	0,13	0,19	0,54	0,17	0,00	0,05	0,19	0,08	0,087	0,17	0,23	0,14	0,13	0,11
рб	0,02	0,09	0,07	0,06	0,11	0,06	0,02	0,06	0,05	0,05	0,08	0,05	0,00	0,01	0,17	0,07	0,653	0,93	0,07	0,04	0,06	0,07
a1	0,75	0,05	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,09	0,10	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,00	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,009	0,02	0,05	0,02	0,03	0,05
a2	0,23	0,81	0,33	0,21	0,16	0,14	0,30	0,49	0,43	0,25	0,18	0,16	0,00	0,14	0,32	0,11	0,103	0,19	0,56	0,29	0,45	0,70
a3	0,05	0,03	1,23	0,05	0,06	0,03	0,04	0,04	0,33	0,04	0,07	0,03	0,00	0,09	0,22	0,12	-0,027	0,06	0,38	0,33	0,85	0,44
a4	0,26	0,26	0,15	1,15	0,14	0,09	0,13	0,17	0,14	0,22	0,14	0,10	0,00	0,04	0,15	0,05	0,051	0,10	0,18	0,10	0,15	0,19
a5	0,07	0,08	0,10	0,13	1,14	0,11	0,07	0,13	0,12	0,17	0,47	0,15	0,00	0,05	0,12	0,05	0,088	0,17	0,20	0,13	0,12	0,10
a6	0,04	0,08	0,06	0,07	0,14	1,03	0,01	0,06	0,06	0,05	0,10	0,05	0,00	0,02	0,14	0,07	0,646	0,92	0,09	0,05	0,07	0,09
fle	0,22	0,27	0,41	0,42	0,42	0,67	0,24	0,34	0,37	0,41	0,40	0,66	0,00	0,03	0,27	0,11	0,368	0,57	0,25	0,15	0,29	0,26
foa	0,52	0,26	0,36	0,45	0,44	0,25	0,67	0,34	0,34	0,45	0,45	0,24	0,00	0,04	0,22	0,08	0,115	0,21	0,24	0,14	0,26	0,24
dicnfc	0,16	0,07	0,10	0,12	0,11	0,07	0,23	0,12	0,12	0,16	0,16	0,08	0,00	0,36	0,05	0,11	0,048	0,08	0,09	0,06	0,10	0,09
dicfc	0,03	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,01	0,00	0,06	0,03	0,01	0,008	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
dicg	0,02	0,15	0,11	0,09	0,12	0,05	0,01	0,08	0,08	0,05	0,06	0,03	0,00	0,01	0,29	0,12	0,027	0,06	0,12	0,06	0,11	0,13
dicnp	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,038	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
diknfc	0,11	0,05	0,08	0,10	0,10	0,06	0,14	0,07	0,07	0,09	0,09	0,05	0,00	0,25	0,76	0,08	0,002	0,03	0,04	0,02	0,22	0,05
dikfc	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,04	0,06	0,44	0,003	0,01	0,06	0,00	0,02	0,01
dikg	0,00	-0,01	-0,01	0,00	-0,01	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	-0,01	-0,01	-0,100	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,01
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	-0,002	0,07	0,00	0,00	0,07	0,00

Table A.1.9. Additional	extragroup or cros	s effects matrix	$(M_3 - I) * M_2 *$	M <sub>1</sub> - 1995	(Scenario A)
	<u> </u>			-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Source: Table A.1.1.

	p1	p2	p3	p4	p5	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	a6	fle	foa	dicnfc	dicfc	dicg	dicnp	diknfc	dikfc	dikg	diknp
p1	0,11	0,05	0,02	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,17	0,09	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,01	0,004	0,01	0,03	0,01	0,02	0,03
p2	0,39	0,49	0,68	0,38	0,20	0,24	0,52	0,86	0,64	0,37	0,19	0,23	0,00	0,11	0,54	0,18	0,088	0,28	0,80	0,25	0,74	0,89
p3	0,04	0,02	0,44	0,04	0,06	0,03	0,08	0,04	0,44	0,05	0,08	0,03	0,00	0,07	0,29	0,16	-0,069	0,07	0,50	0,30	0,92	0,53
p4	0,20	0,16	0,07	0,13	0,06	0,06	0,10	0,13	0,09	0,14	0,06	0,07	0,00	0,02	0,06	0,02	0,035	0,06	0,11	0,04	0,10	0,12
рŚ	0,13	0,12	0,15	0,26	0,35	0,16	0,15	0,17	0,14	0,26	0,39	0,15	0,00	0,04	0,20	0,06	0,067	0,19	0,27	0,07	0,17	0,22
рб	0,02	0,10	0,08	0,08	0,10	0,09	0,03	0,07	0,06	0,06	0,08	0,08	0,00	0,07	0,25	0,07	0,632	0,92	0,08	0,03	0,08	0,14
al	0,68	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,11	0,06	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,00	0,005	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
a2	0,18	0,70	0,27	0,16	0,09	0,10	0,26	0,44	0,35	0,20	0,10	0,12	0,00	0,07	0,20	0,08	0,067	0,15	0,44	0,14	0,40	0,49
a3	0,05	0,02	1,27	0,04	0,06	0,02	0,05	0,04	0,44	0,05	0,07	0,03	0,00	0,08	0,21	0,13	-0,048	0,07	0,50	0,29	0,89	0,53
a4	0,32	0,26	0,14	1,11	0,14	0,10	0,14	0,18	0,13	0,22	0,10	0,11	0,00	0,03	0,11	0,04	0,053	0,11	0,17	0,05	0,15	0,18
a5	0,11	0,09	0,10	0,17	1,04	0,10	0,12	0,14	0,12	0,22	0,33	0,13	0,00	0,04	0,12	0,04	0,070	0,17	0,24	0,06	0,15	0,19
a6	0,03	0,09	0,08	0,08	0,14	1,06	0,03	0,08	0,08	0,07	0,09	0,09	0,00	0,07	0,22	0,07	0,627	0,92	0,12	0,04	0,10	0,17
fle	0,24	0,26	0,47	0,47	0,38	0,68	0,25	0,34	0,43	0,46	0,35	0,67	0,00	0,04	0,30	0,09	0,336	0,56	0,28	0,11	0,34	0,31
foa	0,46	0,20	0,28	0,37	0,52	0,23	0,63	0,29	0,25	0,37	0,57	0,22	0,00	0,03	0,18	0,06	0,092	0,19	0,21	0,08	0,22	0,21
dicnfc	0,11	0,04	0,06	0,07	0,11	0,05	0,16	0,08	0,07	0,10	0,15	0,06	0,00	0,27	0,03	0,12	0,031	0,06	0,06	0,02	0,06	0,06
dicfc	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,02	0,06	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,05	0,02	0,00	0,10	0,07	0,01	0,011	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
dicg	0,01	0,16	0,12	0,11	0,16	0,06	0,02	0,11	0,11	0,08	0,09	0,05	0,00	0,09	0,36	0,11	0,032	0,08	0,14	0,05	0,13	0,14
dicnp	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,00	0,03	0,04	0,01	0,020	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,01
diknfc	0,06	0,02	0,04	0,05	0,07	0,03	0,08	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,07	0,02	0,00	0,15	0,58	0,07	-0,014	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,25	0,02
dikfc	0,03	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,01	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,01	0,00	0,07	0,06	0,73	0,004	0,02	0,02	0,00	0,02	0,01
dikg	0,00	-0,02	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	0,00	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	-0,01	0,00	0,00	-0,01	-0,04	0,00	-0,122	-0,01	-0,01	0,03	-0,01	0,00
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,01	-0,001	0,09	0,00	0,02	0,03	0,00

Table A.1.10. Additional extragroup or	cross effects matrix (M3 - 1	$M_2 * M_1 - 2005$	(Scenario A)
--	------------------------------	--------------------	--------------

Source: Table A.1.2.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	p5	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
$A_n = h$	l∗ŷn <sup>-1</sup>																					
p1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,09	0,08	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0,03	0	0	0	0,04	0,01	0	0
p2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,27	0,52	0,36	0,20	0,07	0,14	0	0	0,37	0	0	0	0,15	0,48	0,17	0,66
p3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,00	0,00	0,24	0,01	0,03	0,01	0	0	0,00	0	0	0	0,81	0,26	0,21	0,32
p4	0,14	0,14	0	-0,81	0	0	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,13	0,04	0,04	0	0	0,07	0	0	0	0,02	0,02	0,01	0
p5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,02	0,05	0,04	0,10	0,36	0,10	0	0	0,08	0	0	0,03	0,10	0,10	0,05	0
рб	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0,01	0,03	0,03	0	0	0,08	0	0	0,88	0,01	0,01	0	0
a1	0,69	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a2	0	0,54	0,005	0	0,02	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3	0	0	0,96	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a4	0	0	0	1,71	0,03	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5	0	0	0	0	0,82	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a6	0	0	0	0	0,03	0,98	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
fle	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,10	0,17	0,18	0,25	0,20	0,56	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
foa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,51	0,14	0,16	0,29	0,27	0,14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dich	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1,00	0,60	0,01	0,10	0,47	0,01	0	0	0	0
dicnfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,33	0,02	0	0,08	0	0	0	0	0
dicfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,05	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,01	0	0	0	0
dicnp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0
dikh	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,10	0	0	0	0	0	0,39	0
diknfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,70	0	0	0	0	0	0
dikfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,36	0	0	0,04	0,16	0
diknp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,07	0	0	0	0
A1 = L	* Y^n.	1																				
dicg	0	0,07	0,03	0,06	0,05	0,02	-0,02	0	0	0	0	0	0	-0,07	0,18	0,16	0,05	0	0	0	0	0
dikg	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01
dif	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
rw	0,17	0,24	0,002	0,05	0,05	0,01	-0,01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,1	0,02	0,01	0,01	0	-0,14	0,06	0,01	0
Sum																						
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1

# Table A.1.11. Average expenditure propensities matrices – 1995 (Scenario B)

Source: Table 4.

Table A.1.12	Average expenditure	propensities	matrices – 2	2005 (	Scenario	B)
1 abit 11.1.1.1.2.	riveruge expenditure	propensities	matrices 2	2002 (	(Deenario	$\boldsymbol{D}_{j}$

	p1	p2	p3	p4	p5	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	a6	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
$A_n = N$	∛*ŷn <sup>-1</sup>																					
p1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,14	0,06	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0,03	0	0	0	0,03	0	0	0
p2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,27	0,56	0,32	0,19	0,04	0,12	0	0	0,34	0	0	0,01	0,11	0,41	0,05	0,47
р3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0,01	0,31	0,01	0,02	0,01	0	0	0,00	0	0	0	0,82	0,35	0,12	0,37
p4	0,20	0,14	0	-0,65	0	0	0,02	0,03	0,01	0,13	0,03	0,05	0	0	0,10	0	0	0	0,02	0,01	0	0,01
p5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,06	0,07	0,04	0,15	0,28	0,09	0	0	0,11	0	0	0,04	0,18	0,14	0,01	0,09
рб	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,00	0	0,01	0,01	0,05	0	0	0,08	0	0	0,82	0,02	0,01	0	0,06
a1	0,62	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a2	0	0,49	0,01	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3	0	0	0,94	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a4	0	0,01	0,01	1,51	0,04	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5	0	0	0	0	0,80	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a6	0	0	0,01	0	0,04	0,97	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
fle	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,11	0,16	0,22	0,29	0,20	0,56	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
foa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,47	0,12	0,10	0,21	0,41	0,13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dich	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1,00	0,50	0,01	0,10	0,37	0,01	0	0	0	0
dicnfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,24	0,01	0,01	0,11	0	0	0	0	0
dicfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,07	0,02	0,06	0,01	0,01	0	0	0	0
dicnp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0,03	0	0,01	0	0	0	0
dikh	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,07	0	0	0	0	0	0,34	0
diknfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,55	0	0	0	0	0	0
dikfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,44	0	0	0,00	0,39	0
diknp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,09	0	0	0,01	0
A1 = L	* Y^n-	-1																				
dicg	-0,02	0,08	0,03	0,06	0,06	0,02	-0,06	0	0	0	0	0	0	-0,01	0,20	0,25	0,05	0,01	0	0	0	0
dikg	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,02	0	0,02	0,01
dif	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
rw	0,20	0,28	0	0,04	0,04	0,01	-0,03	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,18	0,02	0,01	0,02	0	-0,19	0,06	0,06	0
Sum																						
	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1

Source: Table 5.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	р5	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1	1,19	0,15	0,15	0,15	0,13	0,15	0,25	0,24	0,15	0,16	0,14	0,16	0,16	0,14	0,158	0,13	0,15	0,15	0,20	0,15	0,17	0,15
p2	1,41	2,25	1,78	1,56	1,39	1,57	1,72	1,88	1,83	1,65	1,53	1,61	1,52	1,48	1,521	1,48	1,57	1,59	2,02	1,83	1,93	2,07
р3	0,25	0,18	1,55	0,29	0,30	0,30	0,31	0,25	0,57	0,31	0,34	0,30	0,31	0,36	0,310	0,45	0,57	0,32	1,33	0,57	1,06	0,62
p4	0,32	0,28	0,27	0,87	0,26	0,28	0,28	0,28	0,28	0,34	0,28	0,29	0,26	0,24	0,265	0,22	0,25	0,28	0,32	0,26	0,29	0,27
рĴ	0,37	0,32	0,44	0,52	1,80	0,55	0,43	0,45	0,45	0,56	0,92	0,57	0,45	0,42	0,450	0,40	0,46	0,57	0,61	0,48	0,58	0,35
рб	0,13	0,10	0,14	0,16	0,18	1,19	0,15	0,14	0,14	0,17	0,21	0,20	0,19	0,16	0,193	0,11	0,17	1,06	0,17	0,12	0,15	0,11
a1	0,83	0,11	0,11	0,11	0,10	0,11	1,18	0,17	0,11	0,12	0,11	0,11	0,12	0,10	0,115	0,09	0,11	0,11	0,15	0,11	0,13	0,11
a2	0,78	1,23	0,98	0,86	0,79	0,87	0,95	2,03	1,01	0,91	0,85	0,89	0,84	0,81	0,838	0,82	0,86	0,88	1,12	1,01	1,07	1,14
a3	0,24	0,17	1,49	0,28	0,29	0,29	0,30	0,24	1,54	0,29	0,33	0,29	0,30	0,35	0,298	0,43	0,55	0,31	1,28	0,55	1,02	0,59
a4	0,55	0,48	0,47	1,50	0,49	0,49	0,49	0,50	0,49	1,60	0,51	0,50	0,46	0,43	0,465	0,39	0,45	0,49	0,56	0,46	0,52	0,47
a5	0,31	0,26	0,36	0,43	1,48	0,46	0,35	0,37	0,37	0,46	1,76	0,47	0,37	0,35	0,371	0,33	0,38	0,47	0,51	0,40	0,48	0,29
a6	0,14	0,11	0,16	0,18	0,24	1,19	0,17	0,15	0,16	0,19	0,24	1,22	0,21	0,18	0,206	0,13	0,18	1,06	0,19	0,14	0,17	0,13
fle	0,54	0,48	0,72	0,77	0,75	1,09	0,62	0,68	0,75	0,82	0,83	1,11	1,51	0,49	0,512	0,46	0,54	1,02	0,78	0,55	0,70	0,56
toa	0,84	0,49	0,69	0,81	0,78	0,66	1,05	0,68	0,72	0,85	0,88	0,68	0,49	1,47	0,492	0,45	0,53	0,65	0,77	0,55	0,69	0,55
dich	1,11	0,82	1,21	1,33	1,29	1,55	1,34	1,16	1,24	1,41	1,43	1,59	1,87	1,48	1,875	0,89	1,41	1,49	1,32	0,94	1,17	0,94
diente	0,30	0,18	0,26	0,30	0,29	0,25	0,38	0,25	0,26	0,31	0,32	0,26	0,20	0,52	0,202	1,18	0,29	0,25	0,28	0,20	0,25	0,20
dictic	0,08	0,05	0,08	0,09	0,08	0,08	0,10	0,07	0,08	0,09	0,09	0,09	0,08	0,13	0,083	0,08	1,08	0,09	0,08	0,06	0,07	0,06
dicnp	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,011	0,01	0,02	1,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01
dikh	0,13	0,10	0,14	0,16	0,15	0,18	0,16	0,14	0,15	0,17	0,17	0,18	0,21	0,18	0,212	0,12	0,33	0,17	1,15	0,13	0,60	0,11
diknfc	0,21	0,13	0,18	0,21	0,20	0,18	0,26	0,18	0,18	0,22	0,23	0,18	0,14	0,36	0,141	0,82	0,20	0,17	0,20	1,14	0,18	0,14
diktic	0,05	0,03	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,06	0,04	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,07	0,043	0,08	0,47	0,05	0,05	0,09	1,23	0,03
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,001	0,00	0,00	0,07	0,00	0,00	0,00	1,00

Table A.1.13. Accounting multipliers matrix	x - 1995 (Scenario B)
---	-----------------------

Source: Tables 4 and A.1.11.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	рŚ	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1	1,17	0,09	0,09	0,09	0,07	0,09	0,24	0,15	0,09	0,10	0,08	0,09	0,10	0,07	0,099	0,06	0,09	0,09	0,13	0,08	0,10	0,08
p2	1,08	1,94	1,43	1,18	0,97	1,20	1,37	1,57	1,47	1,25	1,06	1,23	1,18	0,96	1,187	1,04	1,18	1,22	1,63	1,48	1,38	1,60
p3	0,21	0,13	1,61	0,23	0,25	0,24	0,26	0,19	0,64	0,25	0,28	0,24	0,24	0,28	0,241	0,44	0,63	0,28	1,38	0,67	1,10	0,69
p4	0,36	0,27	0,26	0,92	0,23	0,29	0,29	0,28	0,26	0,34	0,25	0,30	0,27	0,21	0,274	0,19	0,24	0,28	0,31	0,25	0,26	0,26
рĴ	0,42	0,31	0,45	0,58	1,66	0,55	0,49	0,45	0,46	0,62	0,76	0,56	0,48	0,38	0,480	0,39	0,48	0,58	0,73	0,53	0,57	0,49
рб	0,12	0,08	0,13	0,15	0,15	1,21	0,15	0,12	0,13	0,16	0,17	0,22	0,19	0,15	0,188	0,12	0,15	1,03	0,17	0,11	0,14	0,17
al	0,73	0,06	0,06	0,06	0,05	0,06	1,15	0,10	0,06	0,06	0,05	0,06	0,06	0,05	0,065	0,04	0,06	0,06	0,09	0,05	0,07	0,06
a2	0,54	0,95	0,73	0,60	0,50	0,60	0,68	1,78	0,73	0,62	0,53	0,61	0,59	0,48	0,591	0,52	0,59	0,61	0,82	0,74	0,70	0,80
a3	0,20	0,12	1,51	0,22	0,24	0,23	0,25	0,19	1,60	0,24	0,27	0,23	0,23	0,26	0,230	0,41	0,60	0,26	1,30	0,63	1,04	0,65
a4	0,58	0,44	0,43	1,43	0,44	0,47	0,47	0,46	0,44	1,55	0,43	0,48	0,44	0,34	0,446	0,31	0,40	0,46	0,53	0,42	0,43	0,44
a5	0,34	0,25	0,37	0,47	1,33	0,44	0,40	0,37	0,37	0,50	1,61	0,45	0,39	0,31	0,388	0,31	0,39	0,47	0,60	0,43	0,46	0,40
a6	0,14	0,09	0,16	0,17	0,21	1,20	0,17	0,14	0,15	0,18	0,20	1,24	0,21	0,17	0,207	0,14	0,17	1,03	0,21	0,14	0,17	0,20
fle	0,52	0,41	0,74	0,76	0,65	1,05	0,60	0,61	0,75	0,81	0,70	1,08	1,47	0,39	0,472	0,41	0,52	0,96	0,81	0,55	0,65	0,59
foa	0,71	0,36	0,53	0,64	0,77	0,56	0,93	0,54	0,54	0,69	0,89	0,57	0,40	1,32	0,403	0,34	0,42	0,55	0,65	0,46	0,52	0,47
dich	0,93	0,62	1,05	1,14	1,09	1,38	1,14	0,93	1,07	1,21	1,21	1,42	1,72	1,15	1,726	0,73	1,16	1,30	1,19	0,82	0,96	0,86
dicnfc	0,19	0,10	0,15	0,18	0,21	0,16	0,25	0,15	0,15	0,19	0,24	0,17	0,13	0,35	0,129	1,11	0,24	0,16	0,18	0,13	0,15	0,13
dicfc	0,09	0,05	0,08	0,09	0,10	0,09	0,11	0,07	0,08	0,09	0,11	0,09	0,08	0,15	0,081	0,11	1,09	0,09	0,09	0,06	0,07	0,06
dicnp	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,04	0,023	0,05	0,03	1,03	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02
dikh	0,09	0,05	0,09	0,10	0,10	0,12	0,11	0,08	0,09	0,11	0,11	0,12	0,14	0,12	0,139	0,08	0,35	0,11	1,10	0,07	0,64	0,08
diknfc	0,11	0,06	0,08	0,10	0,12	0,09	0,14	0,08	0,08	0,11	0,13	0,09	0,07	0,19	0,071	0,61	0,13	0,09	0,10	1,07	0,08	0,07
dikfc	0,06	0,04	0,05	0,06	0,07	0,06	0,08	0,05	0,06	0,07	0,08	0,06	0,06	0,11	0,058	0,08	0,78	0,07	0,07	0,05	1,68	0,05
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,003	0,00	0,01	0,09	0,00	0,00	0,02	1,00

 Table A.1.14. Accounting multipliers matrix – 2005 (Scenario B)

Source: Tables 5 and A.1.12.

	p1	p2	pЗ	p4	p5	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1 [	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
p3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
p4	0	0	0	-0,45	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
p5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
рб	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
a1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
a2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
a4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
a6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
fle	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
foa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
dich	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0,006	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
dicnfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,00	0	0	C	0	0	0
dicfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	C	0	0	0
dicnp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,00	C	0	0	0
dikh	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
diknfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0
dikfc	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0,19	0
diknp	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

**Table A.1.15.** Additional intragroup or direct effects matrix (M<sub>1</sub> - I) – 1995 (Scenario B)

Source: Table A.1.11.

	p1	р	2	р3	p4	p5	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fl	e	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p2		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p3		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p4		0	0	0	-0,39	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p5		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
pб		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a1		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a2		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a3		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a4		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
a5		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
аб		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
fle		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
foa		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dich		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0,006	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicnfc		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0	0
dicfc		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0	0	0
dicnp		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,01	0	0	0	0
dikh		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
diknfc		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
dikfc		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0,63	0
diknp		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

**Table A.1.16.** Additional intragroup or direct effects matrix  $(M_1 - I) - 2005$  (Scenario B)

Source: Table A.1.12.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	рŚ	рб	al	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,028	0,02	0,02	0,04	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,04
p2	0,24	0,17	0,22	0,23	0,22	0,22	0,29	0,29	0,33	0,31	0,33	0,31	0,20	0,24	0,254	0,17	0,26	0,44	0,48	0,32	0,32	0,33
р3	0,08	0,04	0,07	0,09	0,08	0,10	0,05	0,04	0,06	0,05	0,06	0,05	0,05	0,07	0,034	0,03	0,08	0,05	0,10	0,05	0,06	0,05
p4	0,05	0,04	0,06	0,05	0,05	0,06	0,05	0,04	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,038	0,04	0,05	0,07	0,06	0,04	0,06	0,04
p5	0,07	0,06	0,07	0,07	0,07	0,07	0,09	0,09	0,09	0,10	0,13	0,10	0,06	0,07	0,078	0,05	0,07	0,14	0,12	0,09	0,09	0,08
рб	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,030	0,02	0,02	0,07	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,03
a1	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,013	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,01
a2	0,19	0,15	0,25	0,23	0,20	0,26	0,15	0,12	0,12	0,13	0,14	0,12	0,17	0,15	0,109	0,18	0,17	0,14	0,14	0,11	0,20	0,11
a3	0,04	0,03	0,10	0,05	0,06	0,05	0,10	0,06	0,07	0,09	0,08	0,10	0,05	0,06	0,053	0,09	0,07	0,04	0,04	0,03	0,13	0,03
a4	0,08	0,06	0,09	0,11	0,10	0,12	0,10	0,10	0,10	0,10	0,09	0,10	0,07	0,08	0,077	0,07	0,08	0,08	0,12	0,09	0,10	0,10
a5	0,07	0,06	0,09	0,11	0,15	0,12	0,07	0,06	0,06	0,06	0,06	0,06	0,08	0,07	0,050	0,07	0,08	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,08	0,05
aб	0,04	0,03	0,05	0,06	0,06	0,08	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,019	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,02
fle	0,08	0,07	0,08	0,08	0,08	0,08	0,13	0,12	0,13	0,14	0,15	0,16	0,10	0,12	0,090	0,08	0,12	0,12	0,16	0,11	0,12	0,11
foa	0,08	0,07	0,09	0,08	0,08	0,08	0,12	0,12	0,13	0,13	0,14	0,14	0,09	0,11	0,093	0,08	0,12	0,12	0,16	0,12	0,12	0,12
dich	0,18	0,16	0,26	0,25	0,28	0,21	0,15	0,16	0,15	0,15	0,15	0,14	0,28	0,22	0,164	0,25	0,26	0,18	0,19	0,16	0,30	0,16
dicnfc	0,04	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,06	0,04	0,03	0,04	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,05	0,04	0,037	0,05	0,05	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,06	0,04
dicfc	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,014	0,01	0,01	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,01
dicnp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,002	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00
dikh	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,031	0,02	0,02	0,08	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,03
diknfc	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,05	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,038	0,02	0,02	0,05	0,07	0,04	0,04	0,04
dikfc	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,00	0,006	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,000	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00

Table A.1.17. Additional	intergroup or indirect	effects matrix (N	$M_2 - I) * M_1 -$	1995 (Scenario B)
			_ / -	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Source: Table A.1.11.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	рŚ	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	aб	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,017	0,01	0,01	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02
p2	0,18	0,11	0,15	0,15	0,15	0,15	0,23	0,22	0,27	0,24	0,23	0,25	0,13	0,14	0,197	0,11	0,21	0,35	0,41	0,27	0,22	0,29
p3	0,05	0,03	0,05	0,06	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,03	0,06	0,04	0,05	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,029	0,02	0,11	0,04	0,11	0,06	0,05	0,06
p4	0,05	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,05	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,04	0,03	0,038	0,04	0,04	0,07	0,06	0,04	0,05	0,04
p5	0,08	0,05	0,07	0,07	0,06	0,07	0,09	0,08	0,10	0,11	0,11	0,11	0,06	0,06	0,079	0,05	0,08	0,14	0,14	0,09	0,08	0,10
рб	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,01	0,01	0,028	0,01	0,02	0,06	0,05	0,03	0,03	0,03
a1	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,007	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01
a2	0,13	0,10	0,19	0,16	0,14	0,19	0,09	0,07	0,08	0,08	0,08	0,08	0,12	0,09	0,068	0,12	0,12	0,10	0,10	0,07	0,15	0,08
a3	0,03	0,02	0,12	0,04	0,05	0,04	0,07	0,04	0,05	0,06	0,07	0,07	0,04	0,05	0,043	0,10	0,06	0,04	0,04	0,03	0,16	0,03
a4	0,08	0,05	0,09	0,11	0,10	0,12	0,09	0,09	0,09	0,08	0,08	0,09	0,07	0,06	0,065	0,05	0,07	0,07	0,10	0,08	0,08	0,09
a5	0,07	0,05	0,09	0,12	0,12	0,13	0,06	0,05	0,05	0,06	0,06	0,06	0,08	0,06	0,047	0,07	0,07	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,09	0,05
a6	0,04	0,02	0,05	0,06	0,06	0,08	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,017	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,02
fle	0,08	0,06	0,08	0,07	0,06	0,07	0,12	0,10	0,13	0,13	0,13	0,15	0,08	0,09	0,080	0,06	0,14	0,12	0,17	0,11	0,10	0,11
foa	0,07	0,05	0,07	0,06	0,05	0,06	0,11	0,10	0,11	0,12	0,12	0,13	0,07	0,07	0,078	0,05	0,11	0,10	0,14	0,10	0,08	0,10
dich	0,15	0,12	0,23	0,22	0,21	0,19	0,13	0,12	0,12	0,12	0,11	0,11	0,25	0,17	0,128	0,21	0,21	0,15	0,16	0,12	0,29	0,13
dicnfc	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,04	0,04	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,04	0,02	0,021	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,04	0,02
dicfc	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,014	0,01	0,01	0,03	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02
dicnp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,004	0,00	0,00	0,01	0,01	0,00	0,01	0,00
dikh	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,020	0,01	0,01	0,05	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02
diknfc	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,021	0,01	0,01	0,03	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02
dikfc	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,011	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,000	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00

**Table A.1.18.** Additional intergroup or indirect effects matrix  $(M_2 - I) * M_1 - 2005$  (Scenario B)

Source: Table A.1.12.

	pl	p2	р3	p4	рĴ	рб	al	a2	a3	a4	a5	аб	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1	0,17	0,13	0,12	0,13	0,11	0,13	0,22	0,20	0,11	0,13	0,11	0,12	0,14	0,12	0,130	0,11	0,13	0,11	0,16	0,12	0,14	0,11
p2	1,17	1,07	1,56	1,34	1,17	1,36	1,43	1,59	1,50	1,34	1,20	1,29	1,32	1,23	1,267	1,32	1,31	1,15	1,54	1,51	1,61	1,74
p3	0,17	0,13	0,48	0,20	0,23	0,20	0,26	0,21	0,51	0,26	0,29	0,26	0,25	0,29	0,276	0,42	0,49	0,27	1,24	0,52	1,00	0,56
p4	0,27	0,24	0,21	0,27	0,21	0,22	0,23	0,24	0,23	0,29	0,23	0,24	0,22	0,20	0,226	0,18	0,21	0,21	0,26	0,22	0,24	0,23
рĴ	0,30	0,26	0,37	0,45	0,73	0,48	0,34	0,36	0,36	0,45	0,80	0,46	0,39	0,35	0,372	0,35	0,39	0,43	0,49	0,40	0,48	0,27
рб	0,10	0,08	0,12	0,14	0,16	0,17	0,13	0,11	0,11	0,14	0,17	0,17	0,18	0,15	0,163	0,10	0,15	1,00	0,12	0,09	0,12	0,08
a1	0,80	0,09	0,08	0,08	0,07	0,08	0,16	0,16	0,09	0,10	0,09	0,10	0,09	0,08	0,102	0,07	0,09	0,09	0,13	0,10	0,11	0,10
a2	0,59	1,08	0,73	0,63	0,59	0,61	0,80	0,92	0,89	0,78	0,71	0,76	0,67	0,67	0,729	0,64	0,69	0,74	0,98	0,90	0,86	1,03
a3	0,21	0,14	1,39	0,23	0,23	0,23	0,20	0,18	0,48	0,21	0,25	0,20	0,25	0,29	0,246	0,34	0,49	0,27	1,24	0,52	0,89	0,56
a4	0,47	0,42	0,38	1,39	0,38	0,37	0,39	0,40	0,38	0,50	0,42	0,40	0,39	0,34	0,387	0,32	0,37	0,41	0,44	0,37	0,42	0,37
a5	0,24	0,20	0,27	0,32	1,34	0,33	0,29	0,31	0,31	0,40	0,70	0,41	0,29	0,28	0,321	0,26	0,30	0,41	0,44	0,35	0,39	0,24
аб	0,10	0,08	0,11	0,12	0,18	1,11	0,14	0,13	0,13	0,16	0,21	0,19	0,18	0,15	0,187	0,11	0,15	1,03	0,16	0,12	0,15	0,11
fle	0,46	0,41	0,64	0,69	0,67	1,01	0,49	0,57	0,61	0,68	0,67	0,96	0,42	0,37	0,423	0,38	0,42	0,90	0,62	0,44	0,58	0,45
foa	0,76	0,42	0,61	0,73	0,71	0,58	0,93	0,57	0,59	0,72	0,74	0,53	0,40	0,36	0,398	0,38	0,40	0,53	0,61	0,44	0,57	0,43
dich	0,94	0,66	0,95	1,08	1,01	1,34	1,19	1,00	1,09	1,26	1,28	1,45	1,59	1,27	0,705	0,64	1,15	1,32	1,12	0,78	0,87	0,78
dicnfc	0,26	0,14	0,20	0,24	0,23	0,21	0,35	0,22	0,23	0,28	0,29	0,23	0,15	0,48	0,165	0,12	0,24	0,20	0,24	0,17	0,19	0,16
dicfc	0,07	0,04	0,06	0,07	0,07	0,07	0,09	0,06	0,06	0,08	0,08	0,07	0,07	0,12	0,069	0,07	0,06	0,06	0,06	0,04	0,06	0,04
dicnp	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,009	0,01	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01	0,01
dikh	0,11	0,08	0,12	0,13	0,13	0,16	0,13	0,11	0,11	0,13	0,13	0,15	0,20	0,17	0,181	0,11	0,31	0,10	0,10	0,10	0,57	0,08
diknfc	0,18	0,10	0,15	0,18	0,17	0,14	0,23	0,14	0,15	0,18	0,18	0,15	0,12	0,35	0,103	0,80	0,18	0,12	0,13	0,10	0,13	0,10
dikfc	0,03	0,02	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,03	0,05	0,03	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,07	0,036	0,07	0,47	0,04	0,04	0,08	0,03	0,03
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,001	0,00	0,00	0,07	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00

Table A.1.19. Additional	extragroup or cross	s effects matrix	$(M_3 - I)$	$) * M_2 * M_1$	- 1995 (Scenario B)
			< 2	/ _ 1	

Source: Table A.1.11.

	p1	p2	р3	p4	p5	рб	a1	a2	a3	a4	a5	a6	fle	foa	dich	dicnfc	dicfc	dicnp	dikh	diknfc	dikfc	diknp
p1	0,15	0,08	0,07	0,08	0,06	0,08	0,22	0,13	0,07	0,08	0,06	0,07	0,09	0,06	0,082	0,05	0,08	0,06	0,10	0,06	0,08	0,06
p2	0,91	0,83	1,28	1,03	0,82	1,06	1,14	1,35	1,20	1,01	0,83	0,99	1,05	0,81	0,990	0,93	0,97	0,88	1,22	1,21	1,17	1,31
р3	0,15	0,10	0,56	0,17	0,19	0,17	0,22	0,16	0,57	0,20	0,23	0,20	0,19	0,23	0,212	0,41	0,52	0,23	1,27	0,61	1,05	0,63
p4	0,31	0,23	0,20	0,27	0,19	0,23	0,24	0,24	0,22	0,29	0,21	0,25	0,23	0,17	0,236	0,15	0,20	0,21	0,25	0,21	0,21	0,22
p5	0,34	0,25	0,38	0,51	0,60	0,48	0,40	0,37	0,36	0,51	0,65	0,46	0,42	0,32	0,400	0,34	0,40	0,44	0,60	0,44	0,49	0,39
рб	0,10	0,06	0,11	0,13	0,13	0,19	0,12	0,09	0,10	0,13	0,14	0,19	0,17	0,14	0,160	0,11	0,13	0,96	0,12	0,08	0,11	0,14
a1	0,71	0,05	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,04	0,14	0,09	0,05	0,06	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,058	0,03	0,05	0,05	0,08	0,05	0,06	0,05
a2	0,41	0,85	0,53	0,44	0,36	0,41	0,59	0,70	0,66	0,55	0,45	0,54	0,47	0,39	0,523	0,40	0,48	0,52	0,72	0,67	0,55	0,72
a3	0,17	0,10	1,39	0,18	0,20	0,18	0,18	0,14	0,55	0,18	0,20	0,17	0,19	0,22	0,187	0,32	0,53	0,22	1,27	0,60	0,88	0,63
a4	0,50	0,38	0,34	1,32	0,34	0,35	0,38	0,37	0,35	0,47	0,35	0,40	0,37	0,27	0,381	0,26	0,33	0,39	0,42	0,34	0,35	0,35
a5	0,27	0,20	0,27	0,35	1,21	0,32	0,33	0,31	0,32	0,44	0,55	0,40	0,30	0,24	0,341	0,25	0,32	0,41	0,53	0,38	0,37	0,34
аб	0,10	0,07	0,12	0,12	0,16	1,13	0,14	0,12	0,13	0,16	0,17	0,21	0,18	0,15	0,189	0,12	0,15	1,00	0,18	0,12	0,15	0,18
fle	0,45	0,35	0,66	0,69	0,58	0,98	0,48	0,51	0,62	0,68	0,57	0,93	0,39	0,30	0,392	0,34	0,38	0,84	0,64	0,44	0,56	0,47
foa	0,64	0,31	0,46	0,58	0,72	0,49	0,82	0,44	0,43	0,57	0,77	0,44	0,33	0,25	0,325	0,28	0,32	0,45	0,52	0,37	0,44	0,37
dich	0,78	0,50	0,82	0,92	0,89	1,19	1,01	0,81	0,95	1,10	1,11	1,30	1,46	0,98	0,592	0,52	0,96	1,15	1,03	0,69	0,67	0,73
dicnfc	0,16	0,08	0,12	0,14	0,17	0,13	0,23	0,13	0,13	0,17	0,22	0,15	0,09	0,33	0,108	0,07	0,21	0,13	0,15	0,11	0,10	0,11
dicfc	0,07	0,04	0,06	0,07	0,08	0,07	0,10	0,06	0,06	0,08	0,10	0,08	0,07	0,14	0,067	0,10	0,06	0,07	0,07	0,05	0,05	0,05
dicnp	0,02	0,01	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,03	0,02	0,02	0,04	0,019	0,04	0,02	0,02	0,02	0,01	0,01	0,01
dikh	0,07	0,04	0,08	0,08	0,08	0,10	0,09	0,06	0,07	0,08	0,09	0,10	0,13	0,11	0,119	0,07	0,34	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,62	0,05
diknfc	0,09	0,04	0,07	0,08	0,10	0,07	0,12	0,06	0,07	0,08	0,11	0,07	0,06	0,19	0,051	0,60	0,12	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,06	0,05
dikfc	0,05	0,03	0,04	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,07	0,04	0,05	0,06	0,07	0,05	0,05	0,10	0,048	0,08	0,77	0,05	0,05	0,04	0,04	0,03
diknp	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,00	0,002	0,00	0,01	0,09	0,00	0,00	0,02	0,00

Table A.1.20. Additional extragroup or cross effects matrix (M<sub>3</sub> - I) \* M<sub>2</sub> \* M<sub>1</sub>- 2005 (Scenario B)

Source: Table A.1.12.

# A.2. The SAM-based linear model

### A.2.1. Structural indicators

See "conventions and declarations in the A.2.3."

cell	Equations (or exogenous variables)	Eq. <b>n°</b>
Distrib	ution of generated income (gross added value) - among factors of production	
Digav	$V_{\rm f} = ({\rm GAV}_{\rm f} / \Sigma_a  {\rm GAV}_a)^* 100$	(A.1)
Distrib	ution of generated income (gross national income) - among institutions	
Digni	$dic = (GNI_{dic} / GNI) *100$	(A.2)
Distrib	oution of disposable income (among institutions)	
Dididi	$_{\rm ic} = ({\rm DI}_{\rm dic} / {\rm DI}) *100$	(A.3)
Use of	disposable income (among institutions)	
UdiF	$C_{dic} = (FC_{dic} / DI_{dic}) *100$	(A.4)
UdiS	$dic = (S_{dic} / DI_{dic}) * 100 = 100 - UdiFC_{dic}$	(A.5)

#### A.2.2. Macroeconomic aggregates

See "conventions and declarations in the A.2.3."

cell	Equations (or exogenous variables)	Eq. <b>nº</b>
Gross	Domestic Product at market prices	
GDP	$=\Sigma_a \text{ GAV}_a + \text{NTP} + \text{NTA}$	(A.6)
Gross	National Income (at Market Prices)	
GNIM	$\mathbf{MP} = \mathbf{GNI} + \Sigma_{\text{dic}} \mathbf{NTP}_{\text{dic}} + \Sigma_{\text{dic}} \mathbf{NTA}_{\text{dic}}$	(A.7)
Gross	Disposable Income	
DI = 2	$\Sigma_{\rm dic}  {\rm DI}_{\rm dic}$	(A.8)
DI <sub>dic</sub> =	$= GNI_{dic} + NTA_{dic} + NTP_{dic} + CTR_{dic} + CT_{dicrw} - CTP_{dic} - CT_{rwdic}$	(A.9)

# A.2.3. Conventions and declarations

# <u>Sets (set indices: lower-case subscripts)</u>

**p** ε **Products** [products of agriculture, hunting, forestry, fisheries and aquaculture (group 1, **p1**); products from mining and quarrying, manufactured products and energy products (group 2, **p2**); construction work (group 3, **p3**); wholesale and retail trade services, repair services, hotel and restaurant services, transport and communication services (group 4, **p4**); financial intermediation services, real estate, renting and business services (group 5, **p5**); other services (group 6, **p6**)]

 $a \in \text{Activities}$  [agriculture, hunting and forestry; fishing and operation of fish hatcheries and fish farms (group1, a1); industry, including energy (group 2, a2); construction (group 3, a3); wholesale and retail trade, repair of motor vehicles and household goods, hotels and restaurants;

transport and communications (group 4, *a*4); financial, real-estate, renting and business activities (group 5, *a*5); other service activities (group 6, *a*6)]

#### f $\epsilon$ Factors of production

- Labour employees (fle)
- Own assets (foa) (employers and/or own-account workers; capital)

#### di **\varepsilon** Domestic Institutions

- dic (current account of di) [households (dich); non-financial corporations (dicnfc); financial corporations (dicfc); general government (dicg); non-profit institutions serving households (dicnp-NPISHs)]
- dik (capital account of di) [households (dikh), non-financial corporations (diknfc), financial corporations (dikfc), general government (dikg), and non-profit institutions serving households (diknp-NPISHs)]
- **dif** (financial account of di)

#### rw ε rest of the world

In variables and parameters with **two indices**, the **first** represent the **row** and the **second** the **column accounts** (both indices may be equal).

#### <u>Parameters</u> (lower-case, italics)

- $\alpha$  .. share of the production of each group of activities in the value of production of each group of products
- $\beta$ .. proportion of gross added value in the value of production of each group of activities
- $\gamma$  .. proportion of intermediate consumption in the value of production of each group of activities
- *adv..* share of the value of acquisitions less disposals of valuables of each group of products by each group of domestic institutions in the total value of acquisitions less disposals of valuables by these institutions
- *advc* .. coefficient of acquisitions less disposals of valuables: amount expended by each group of domestic institutions on acquisitions less disposals of valuables per unit of gross saving
- *apc* .. average propensity to consume of each group of domestic institutions: amount of final consumption per unit of (gross) disposable income
- *cf.*. share of compensation of factors received by domestic institutions

- rate of coverage of gross fixed capital formation of each group of domestic cgfcf ... institutions by investment grants received by these institutions share of the value of changes in inventories of each group of products by each chinv .. group of domestic institutions in the total value of changes in inventories of that group of products chinvc .. coefficient of changes in inventories: amount of change in inventories of each group of products per unit of supply dbs.. share of compensation of factors (compensation of employees, gross operating surplus and gross mixed income) in the gross added value d5s .. share of current tax on income, wealth, etc. paid by each group of domestic institutions to each group of domestic institutions (Portuguese general government), in the total of current tax on income, wealth, etc. paid by the former share of current tax on income, wealth, etc. paid by each group of domestic d5rws.. institutions to the rest of the world in the total of current tax on income, wealth, etc. paid by the former
- *d61s*.. share of social contributions paid by each group of domestic institutions to each group of domestic institutions in the total of social contributions paid by the former
- *d61rws*.. share of social contributions paid by each group of domestic institutions to the rest of the world in the total of social contributions paid by the former
- d62s.. share of social benefits other than social transfers in kind paid by each group of domestic institutions to each group of domestic institutions in the total of social benefits other than social transfers in kind paid by the former
- *d62rws*.. share of social benefits other than social transfers in kind paid by each group of domestic institutions to the rest of the world in the total of social benefits other than social transfers in kind paid by the former
- *d7*.. share of other current transfers paid by each group of domestic institutions to each group of domestic institutions in the total of other current transfers paid by the former
- *d7rws* .. share of other current transfers paid by each group of domestic institutions to the rest of the world in the total of social benefits other than social transfers in kind paid by the former
- *d91*.. share of capital taxes paid by each group of domestic institutions (households) to each group of domestic institutions (Portuguese general government) in the total of capital taxes paid by the former

- *d92..* share of investment grants paid by each group of domestic institutions (Portuguese general government) to each group of domestic institutions in the total of investment grants received by the latter
- *d92rw.*. share of investment grants paid by the rest of the world to each group of domestic institutions in the total of investment grants received by the latter
- *d99..* share of other capital transfers paid by each group of domestic institutions to each group of domestic institutions in the total of other capital transfers received by the latter
- *d99rw.*. share of other capital transfers paid by the rest of the world to each group of domestic institutions in the total of other capital transfers received by the latter

*fcs* .. proportion of expenditure on final consumption in each group of products in the total value of the final consumption of each group of domestic institutions

- *fcsrw* .. proportion of expenditure on final consumption in the rest of the world in the total value of the final consumption of each group of domestic institutions
- *gfcf*.. share of the value of gross fixed capital formation in each group of products by each group of domestic institutions in the total value of gross fixed capital formation by these institutions
- *icp* .. coefficient of the intermediate consumption of products: proportion of intermediate consumption of each group of products per unit of intermediate consumption of each group of activities
- *ntag* .. share of net taxes on production paid by each group of activities and received by domestic institutions (Portuguese general government)
- *ntarw* .. share of net taxes on production paid by each group of activities and received by the rest of the world (European Union institutions)
- *ntpg*.. share of net taxes on each group of products received by domestic institutions (Portuguese general government)
- *ntprw*.. share of net taxes on each group of products received by the rest of the world (European Union institutions)
- *sc*.. social contribution rate: social contributions paid by domestic institutions, per unit of received gross national income
- *si* .. saving identity special
- *ti* ... rate of direct taxes: current taxes on income, wealth, etc. paid by domestic institutions, per unit of received aggregate income
- *tk*.. rate of capital tax levied on other capital transfers received by domestic institutions

- *tmr*.. rate of trade and transport margins on each group of domestically transacted products: amount of trade and transport margins per unit of value of domestically transacted products
- *tp* .. (net) tax rate on each group of products: amount of (net) taxes on products per unit of the value of domestically transacted products

#### **Exogenous variables** (upper-case, at least the first letter, italics)

- *CFR.* compensation of the factors of production received from the rest of the world
- *CFS.* compensation of the factors of production sent to the rest of the world
- *D5RW*.. current taxes on income, wealth, etc. (transaction D5 of the National Accounts) received by domestic institutions from the rest of the world
- *D61RW*.. social contributions (transaction D61 of the National Accounts) received by domestic institutions from the rest of the world
- *D62P*.. social benefits other than social transfers in kind (transaction D62 of the National Accounts) paid by domestic institutions
- *D62RW*.. social benefits other than social transfers in kind (transaction D62 of the National Accounts) received by domestic institutions from the rest of the world
- *D7P*.. other current transfers (transaction D7 of the National Accounts) paid by domestic institutions
- *D7RW*.. other current transfers (transaction D7 of the National Accounts) received by domestic institutions from the rest of the world
- *D8*.. adjustment made for the change in the net equity of households in pension fund reserves (transaction D8 of the National Accounts)
- *D92P*.. investment grants (transaction D92 of the National Accounts) paid by domestic institutions (Portuguese general government) to the rest of the world
- *D99P*.. other capital transfers (transaction D99 of the National Accounts) paid by domestic institutions to the rest of the world
- D99R.. other capital transfers (transaction D99 of the National Accounts) received by domestic institutions
- *EX*.. value of exports (transaction P6 of the National Accounts, at f.o.b. prices)
- *FT*.. financial transactions (transactions F1 to F7 of the National Accounts), except those received from the rest of the world
- *IM*.. value of imports (transaction P7 of the National Accounts, at c.i.f. prices)
- *K2*.. acquisitions less disposals of non-financial non-produced assets (transaction K2 of the National Accounts)

- *NTAA* .. net taxes on production paid by each group of activities
- *P51*.. value of gross fixed capital formation (transaction P51 of the National Accounts)

# <u>Endogenous variables</u> (upper-case, at least the first letter, normal)

- AD .. value of aggregate demand (at market prices)
- AFIP .. aggregate factors income (paid)
- AFIR .. aggregate factors income (received)
- AI .. aggregate income (received)
- AINV .. aggregate investment
- AIP .. aggregate income (paid)
- AS .. aggregate supply (value at market prices)
- CT .. current transfers
- CTP... (total) current transfers paid by each group of domestic institutions to (all) domestic institutions
- CTR .. (total) current transfers received by each group of domestic institutions from (all) domestic institutions
- DI .. (gross) disposable income
- Didi .. percentage of gross disposable income received by domestic institutions
- Digav .. percentage of income generated by the factors production
- Digni.. percentage of generated income (gross national income) received by domestic institutions
- DT.. value of domestically transacted products, at basic-c.i.f. prices
- DTmp .. value of domestically transacted products, at market prices
- D5 .. current taxes on income, wealth, etc. (transaction D5 of the National Accounts)
- D61.. social contributions (transaction D61 of the National Accounts)
- D91P.. capital taxes (transaction D91 of the National Accounts) paid by domestic institutions
- D92R .. investment grants (transaction D92 of the National Accounts) received by domestic institutions
- FC .. value of final consumption (transaction P3 of the National Accounts), at market prices
- FTRW .. financial transactions (transactions F1 to F7 of the National Accounts) received by domestic institutions from the rest of the world
- GAV .. gross added value, at factor cost
| GCF   | value of gross capital formation (transaction P5 of the National Accounts), at          |
|-------|---|
|       | market prices   |
| GDP   | gross domestic product, at market prices  |
| GNI   | gross national income, at factor cost   |
| GNIMP | gross national income, at market prices   |
| INVF  | investment funds  |
| KT    | capital transfers   |
| KTP   | (total) capital transfers paid by each group of domestic institutions to (all) domestic |
|       | institutions  |
| KTR   | (total) capital transfers received by each group of domestic institutions from (all)    |
|       | domestic institutions   |
| NLB   | net lending / borrowing   |
| NTA   | net taxes on production (transaction D29-D39 of the National Accounts)                  |
| NTP   | net taxes on products (transaction D21-D31 of the National Accounts)                    |
| P52   | value of changes in inventories (transaction P52 of the National Accounts)              |
| P53   | value of acquisitions less disposals of valuables (transaction P53 of the National      |
|       | Accounts)   |
| S     | gross saving  |
| TFTP  | total financial transactions (paid)   |
| TFTR  | total financial transactions (received)   |
| ТМ    | trade and transport margins on transacted products p                                    |
| TMP   | trade and transport margins on transacted products p - total                            |
| TVRWP | value of transactions to the rest of the world  |
| TVRWR | transactions value from the rest of the world   |
| UdiFC | percentage of gross disposable income used in final consumption by domestic             |
|       | institutions  |
| UdiS  | percentage of gross disposable income used in (gross) saving by domestic                |
|       | institutions  |
| VCT   | value of total costs (at basic prices)  |
| VIC   | value of intermediate consumption (transaction P2 of the National Accounts) at          |
|       | market prices   |
| VP    | value of production (transaction P1 of the National Accounts), at basic prices          |
| VPT   | total production value (at basic prices)  |

#### A.3. Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts

### Table A.3.1. Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts for 1995 (in millions of euros)

Current acc	ounts										
Uses			6.2	C 1	C 16	C 14	C 12	C 12	C 11	1	1
Accounts	Total	Goods and Services Account (Resources)	S.Z Rest of the World Account	5.1 Total of the Economy	NPISHs	5.14 Households	General Government	Financial Corporations	Non-Financial Corporations	Code	Transactions and other flows, stocks and balancing items
I. Production /	29 454	29 454								P.7	Imports of goods and services
external account of	24 433		24 433							P.6	Exports of goods and services
goods and	154 394	154 394								P.1	Output of goods and services
services	84 102			84 102	1 527	9 294	3 003	1 631	64 959	P.2	Intermediate consumption
	10 535	10 535		00.007	1 100	14.044	10.007	4 2 2 2	20.107	D.21-D.31	Record added uplue areas domestic products
	80 827			80.827	1 190	10 900	17 280	4 3 3 3	39 105	D.1910.1 9	ciross audeu valuergross domestic product
	13 457			13 457	279	3 715	1 526	733	7 204	K.1	Consumption of fixed capital
	67 369			67 369	911	13 251	10 860	3 600	31 900	B.1n/B.1"n	Value added, net/Net domestic product
	5 021		5 021							B.11	External balance of goods and services
II.1.1. Generation of	38 683		120	38 563	1 126	2 111	10 990	2 309	22 027	U.1	Compensation of employees
income	10 102			10 102	- 14	- 118	- 30	- 4	- 241	D.2-D.3	Net taxes on production and imports
account	- 433			- 433	- 14	- 118	- 56	- 4	- 241	D.29-D.39	Net taxes on production
	17 189			17 189	78		1 452	2 028	17 319	B.2g	Gross operating surplus
	14 973			14 973		14 973				B.3g	Gross mized income
	7 446			7 446	- 201		- 74	1 295	10 115	B.2n	Net operating surplus
	11 258			11 258		11 258				B.3n	Net mized income
II.1.2. Allocation of	31 314		3 123	28 191	38	2 976	5 066	12 175	7 936	D.4	Property income
primary income	80 479			80 479	137	59 614	7 379	1 787	11 561	B.5g	Services Indirectly Measured) Gross national income/ Gross balance of
account	67 022			67 022	- 142	55 899	5 853	1 054	4 357	B.5n	primary incomes Net national income/ Net balance of primary incomes
II.2. Secondary	7 161			7 161	2	4 932		226	2 000	D.5	Current taxes on income, wealth, etc
distribution	11 718			11 718		11 718				D.61	Social contributions
account	11 659		29	11 630	13	42	9 515	720	1 339	D.62	Social benefits other than social transfers in kind
	15 737		3 931	11 807	19	1 865	8 194	1 066	663	D.7	Other current transfers
	83 517			83 517	1 388	57 105	13 371	2 311	9 342	B.6g	Gross disposable income
113	10 122			70 059	1 109	53 390	0 000	1 578	2 138	D 63	Social transfers in kind
Redistribution	83 517			83 517	1 200	67 282	4 482	2 311	9 342	B.7g	Gross adjusted disposable income
of income in kind account	70 059			70 059	- 178	63 566	2 956	1 578	2 138	B.7n	Net adjusted disposable income
II.4. Use of	83 517			83 517	1 388	57 105	13 371	2 311	9 342	B.6a	Gross disposable income
income	70 059			70 059	1 109	53 390	11 845	1 578	2 138	B.6n	Net disposable income
account	66 225			66 225		60 082	6 143			P.4	Actual Final Consumption
	66 225			66 225	1 288	49 905	15 032			P.3	Final consumption expenditure
	752			752				752		D.8	Adjustment for the change in the net equity of households in pension funds reserves
	17 291			17 291	100	7 952	- 1 661	1 558	9 342	B.8g	Gross saving
	3 834			3 834	- 178	4 237	- 3 187	825	2 138	B.8n	Net saving
	2 331		2 331							B.12	Current external balance
Accumulatio	)n accour Accore	uts									
III.1.1. Change	33013									B.8g	Gross saving
in net worth										B.8n	Net saving
and capital										B.12	Current external balance
transfers										D.9	Capital transfers, receivable
account	6 165		10	6 125	110	5 394	2 002	406	3.006	D.9 B 10 1	Changes in pet worth due to saving and
III.1.2	18 4 57			18 4 57	359	5 383	3.018	918	8 781	P.51	capital transfers Gross fixed capital formation
Acquisitions	- 13 457			- 13 457	- 279	- 3 715	- 1 526	- 733	- 7 204	K.1	Consumption of fixed capital (-)
of non- financial	1 026			1 026	1	255			769	P.52	Changes in inventories
assets	140			140	6	117		4	12	P.53	Acquisitions less disposals of valuables
account			0	0	•	- 738	29	20	689	K.2	Acquisitions less disposals of non-produced non- financial assets
			40	- 40	23	4 023	- 4 423	287	49	2.0	
			S.2	S.1	S.1	5 • S.14	S.13	S.12	S.11		
III.2 Financial account	44 247		9 257	34 990	9 771		1 282	18 231	5 706		Net acquisition of financial assets\ Net incurrence of liabilities
			- 13	13				13		F.1	Monetary gold and SDRs
	17 287		6 604	10 683	5	860	1 794	2 883	147	F.2	Currency and deposits
	6 379		1 679	4 699	1 320		- 15	2 838	557	F.3	Securities other than shares
	8 745		912	7 833	451		96	7 193	94	F.4	Loans
	4 175		48	4 127	- 86	260	- 420	3 162	1 471	r.9 F.6	onares and other equity
	4 260		20	4 240		1 033	- 173	2 105	3 342	F.7	Other accounts receivable/pauable
			40	- 40	4 332		- 4 422	187	- 137	B.9 F	Net lending (+) /borrowing (-)
					287			- 100	- 187		Statistical discrepancy

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) - Portuguese National Accounts for 1995.

# **Table A.3.1.** Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts for 1995 (in millions of euros) (continued)

									Curr	ent accoun
										Resource
		S.12	S.13	S.14	S.15	S.1	S.2	Goods and		
	Transactions and other flows, stocks and						Rest of the	Services		Accounts
	balancing items	Financial	General			Total of the	Vorld	Account		
Code		Corporations	Government	Households	NPISHs	Economy	Account	(Uses)	Total	
2.7	Imports of goods and services						29 454		29 454	I. Production
P.6	Exports of goods and services							24 433	24 433	account of
2.1	Output of goods and services	5 964	15 389	26 260	2 717	154 394			154 394	goods and
P.2	Intermediate consumption							84 102	84 102	services
D.21-D.31	Net taxes on products					10 535			10 535	
3.1g/B.1*g	Gross added value/gross domestic product	4 333	12 386	16 966	1 190	80 874			80 874	II.1.1.
(1	Consumption of fixed capital									income
1.1 2 1nJD 1"n	Value added net/Net domestic product	2 (00	10.070	12.051	011	67.260			67.260	account
5.000.1 0 5.11	Faternal balance of goods and services	3 000	10 800	15 251	911	07 309	F 001		07 309	
2.00 2.1	Componentian of omployees			00,000		00,000	5021		9 U21	812
J.I J 2 D 2	Compensation or employees		0.007	38 620		38 620	64		38 683	Allocation o
J.Z-U.J	Net taxes on production and imports		9 937			9 937	165		10 102	primary
J.21-D.31	Net taxes on products		10 283			10 283	252		10 535	income
J.29-D.39	Net taxes on production		1 220			- 346	- 87		- 433	account
3.2g	Gross operating surplus	2 028	1 452		78	17 189			17 189	
3.3g	Gross mixed income			14 973		14 973			14 973	
3.2n	Net operating surplus	1 295	- 74		- 201	7 446			7 446	ļ
3.3n	Net mized income			11 258		11 258			11 258	
).4	Property income	15 623	1 056	8 998	97	27 952	3 363		31 314	
P.119	Adjustment to the FISIM (Financial Intermediation	- 3 688								
	Services Indirectly Measured)									
3.5g	Gross national income! Gross balance of	1 787	7 379	59 614	137	80 479			80 479	II.2. Seconda
- F-	primary incomes									distribution
3.5n	Net national income? Net balance of	1 054	5 853	55 899	- 142	67 022			67 022	income
15	primary incomes Current taxes on income wealth etc.		7161			2161			7161	account
J.J J.C1	Conent taxes on income, weath, etc	1.470	/ 161	40	10	/ 161			/ 161	
J.61	Social contributions	1 473	8 8 2 1	42	13	11 718			11 718	
J.6Z	Social benefits other than social transfers in Kind			11 629		11 629	30		11 659	
).7	Other current transfers	1 063	7 690	4 376	1 272	14 845	892		15 737	
3.6g	Gross disposable income	2 311	13 371	57 105	1 388	83 517			83 517	II.3.
3.6n	Net disposable income	1 578	11 845	53 390	1 109	70 059			70 059	Redistributio
D.63	Social transfers in kind			10 177		10 177			10 177	kind account
B.7g	Gross adjusted disposable income	2 311	4 482	67 282	100	83 517			83 517	II.4. Use of
3.7n	Net adjusted disposable income	1 578	2 956	63 566	- 178	70 059			70 059	income
		10.0							10 002	account
B.6g	Gross disposable income	2 311	13 371	57 105	1 388	83 517			83 517	
B.6n	Net disposable income	1 578	11 845	53 390	1 109	70 059			70 059	
P.4	Actual Final Consumption							66 225	66 225	
°.3	Final consumption expenditure							66 225	66 225	
<b>J.8</b>	Adjustment for the change in the net equity of			752		752			752	
	households in pension funds reserves									
3.8g	Gross saving									
3.8n	Net saving									
3.12	Current external balance									
								Ac	cumulat	ion accoun
							C	hanges in lia	bilities a	nd net wor
3.8g	Gross saving	1 558	- 1661	7 952	100	17 291			17 291	III.1.1. Chang
- 3.8n	Net saving	825	- 3 187	4 237	- 178	3 834			3 834	in net worth
3 12	Current external balance	010	- 3 107	4.631	- 1/0	5 054	2 2 2 1		2 3 3 3 4	due to savin
19	Capital transfers, receivable	014	0.006	1.144		2.050	± 331		2 030	and capital
 19	Capital transfers, neuerlable ( )	014	2000	1 100	492	1 230	29		1 218	transfers
J.J	Capital transfers, payable (-)	- 1 143	- 3 089	- 78	- 4	- 4 959	- 2 320		- 7 278	account
5.10.1	Changes in net worth due to saving and capital transfers	496	- 2 902	5 324	110	6 125	40		6 165	01.1.2 A contraining -
P 51	Gross fixed capital formation							10 457	19.457	Acquisitions of non-
(1	Consumption of fixed capital (-)							10 40/	10 40/	financial
	Changes in investories							1.007	1.007	assets
.92	Analisikana lasa dina nata - Custo Unit							1 026	1 026	account
93	Acquisitions less disposais of Valuables							140	140	
C.2	Acquisitions less disposals of non-produced non-							0	0	
3.9	Net lending (+) /horrowing (-)									
	······································									
		C 12	C 12	C 14	C 15	C 1	6.2			
		5.12	5.13	ə.14 +	J.1J	3.1	5.2			
	Net acquisition of financial assets\									III.2 Financia
	Net incurrence of liabilities	18 044	5 704	5 438		35 030	9 217		44 247	account
-1	Monetary gold and SDRs									
.2	Currency and deposits	12 961	1 317			14 278	3 010		17 287	1
.3	Securities other than shares	127	4 038			5 345	1 034		6 379	1
.4	Loans	134	545	4 626		7 4 50	1 295		8 745	
:5	Shares and other equitu	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	545	4 020		2 202	400		4 1 2 4	
	Incurance technical records	1 200				3 063	472		9 400	
. e	state of all the restricted in the sections	נוגיב ו				⊥ <u>3</u> 362	: 37		400 د	
6 - 7	Other second reserves		107	010			0.040		4.070	1
F.6 F.7	Other accounts receivable/payable	321	- 196	812		911	3 349		4 260	
.6 .7 .9 F	Other accounts receivable/payable Net lending (+) /borrowing (-)	321	- 196	812		911	3 349		4 260	

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) - Portuguese National Accounts for 1995.

Uses											
0363			S.2	S.1	S.15	S.14	S.13	S.12	S.11		
Accounts		Goods and Services Account	Rest of the Vorld	Total of the			General	Financial	Non-Financial		Transactions and other flows, stocks and balancing items
	Total	(Resources)	Account	Economy	NPISHs	Households	Government	Corporations	Corporations	Code	
I. Production f	55 774	55 774								P.7	Imports of goods and services
account of	42 567		42 567							P.6	Exports of goods and services
goods and	276 675	276 675		140.010	0.000	10.042	C 01 C	4 505	110.007	P.1	Output of goods and services
services	148 312	20.261		148 312	3 /08	19 847	0310	4 633	113 807	F.2	Net taxes on products
	149 123	20 /61		149 123	2 573	26 661	23 962	8 221	66 946	B.1g/B.1*g	Gross added value/gross domestic produc
	24 753			24 753	556	6 807	2 622	588	14 181	К.1	Consumption of fixed capital
	124 370			124 370	20 761	2 017	19 854	21 341	7 633	B.1n/B.1"n	Yalue added, net/Net domestic product
	13 207		13 207							B.11	External balance of goods and services
II.1.1.	75 547		189	75 358	2 086	4 297	21 541	3 642	43 792	D.1	Compensation of employees
Generation of	25 995			25 995	49	1 419	131	40	1 755	D.2-D.3	Net taxes on production and imports
income	22 602			22 602						D.21-D.31	Net taxes on products
account	3 394			3 394	49	1 419	131	40	1 755	D.29-D.39	Net taxes on production
	31 678			31 678	529		2 552	4 583	24 014	B.2g	Gross operating surplus
	22 589			22 589		22 589				B.3g	Gross mized income
	13 732			13 732	- 27		- 70	3 995	9 833	B.2n	Net operating surplus
	15 783			15 783		15 783				B.3n	Net mized income
II.1.2.	40 424		7 633	32 791	128	2 239	4 119	12 541	13 764	D.4	Property income
Allocation or primaru										P.119	Adjustment to the FISIM (Financial Intermediation
income	146 224			146 224	984	106 255	19 339	4 638	15 009	B.5g	Gross national income? Gross balance of
account	101 470			101 470	400	00.440	16 919	4.050		- D En	primary incomes
	121 4/0			121 4/0	428	99 448	16 /1/	4 050	828	D.011	primary incomes
II.2. Secondary	12 594		29	12 566	2	8 275		391	3 897	D.5	Current taxes on income, wealth, etc
income	23 1 54		98	23 056		23 056				D.61	Social contributions
account	26 040		34	26 005	20	51	22 250	1 932	1 753	D.62	Social benefits other than social transfers in Kind
	23 962		4 442	19 520	92	3 924	11 017	2 047	2 441	D.7	Other current transfers
	147 706			147 706	3 312	102 404	27 199	4 907	9 884	D.6g	Caross disposable income
13	144 993			222 993	2 010	160 26	10 101	4 3 1 9	- 4 297	D.63	Social transfers in kind
Redistribution	147 706			147 706	3012	124 537	9 079	4 007	0.994	B 7a	Gross adjusted disposable income
of income in	122 953			122 953	. 256	117 730	5 456	4 307	- 4 297	B.7n	Net adjusted disposable income
kind account II.4. Use of	147 706			147 706	3 312	102 404	27 199	4 907	9 884	B.6g	Gross disposable income
income	122 953			122 953	2 756	95 597	24 577	4 3 1 9	- 4 297	B.6n	Net disposable income
account	128 681			128 681		115 828	12 853			P.4	Actual Final Consumption
	128 681			128 681	3 012	93 695	31 974			P.3	Final consumption expenditure
	835			835				835		D.8	Adjustment for the change in the net equity of boundaries funds recorded
	19 025			19 025	300	9 544	- 4 775	4 072	9 884	B.8g	Gross saving
	- 5 728			- 5 728	- 256	2 737	- 7 397	3 484	- 4 297	B.8n	Net saving
	14 624		14 624							B.12	Current external balance
Accumulatio	n accounts										
III.1.1. Change	199019									B.8g	Gross saving
in net worth										B.8n	Net saving
due to saving										B.12	Current external balance
and capital transfers										D.9	Capital transfers, receivable
account										D.9	Capital transfers, payable (-)
	8 896		12 383	- 3 487	130	4 848	- 7 500	1 488	- 2 452	B.10.1	Changes in net worth due to saving and capital transfers
III.1.2	33 098			33 098	569	8 252	4 374	1 002	18 901	P.51	Gross fixed capital formation
Acquisitions	- 24 753			- 24 753	- 556	- 6 807	- 2 622	- 588	- 14 181	K.1	Consumption of fixed capital (-)
financial	382			382		63			318	P.52	Changes in inventories
assets	170			170	77	51	6	35	1	P.53	Acquisitions less disposals of valuables
account			49	- 49		- 1 437	- 236	358	1 266	K.2	Acquisitions less disposals of non-produced non- financial assets
			12 335	- 12 335	41	4 725	- 9 023	681	- 8 758	B.9	Net lending (+) /borrowing (-)
			S.2	S.1	S.15	+ S.14	S.13	S.12	S.11		
III.2 Financial	87 810		31 113	56 697	15	454	579	34 233	6 431		Net acquisition of financial assets
account											Net incurrence of liabilities
			507	- 507				- 507		F.1	Monetary gold and SDRs

### Table A.3.2. Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts for 2005 (in millions of euros)

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE) - Portuguese National Accounts for 2005.

9172

10148

3 859

7 427

11

- 11

11 1 30

15 282

14 236

10 463

8121

- 2 028

991

88

4

6 589

7 842

- 60

20 302

25 430

18 095

17 890

8 1 3 2

- 2 039

880

520

281

523

- 581

2

5 039

15 768

12 267

2 948

- 1 364

82

4 220 F.2

- 1 094 F.3

1 684 F.4

1 449 F.5

195 **F.6** 

- 23 F.7

B.9 F

Currency and deposits

Shares and other equity

Loans

Securities other than shares

Insurance technical reserves

Other accounts receivable/payable

Net lending (+) /borrowing (-) Statistical discrepancy

# Table A.3.2. Portuguese Integrated Economic Accounts for 2005 (in millions of euros) (continued)

										Curr	ent accounts
											Resources
		S.11	S.12	S.13	S.14	S.15	S.1	S.2			
	Transactions and other flows, stocks and							Pactofile	Goods and Somicor		Accounts
	balancing items	Non-Financial	Financial	General			Total of the	Vorld	Account		
Code		Corporations	Corporations	Government	Households	NPISHs	Economy	Account	(Uses)	Total	
P.7	Imports of goods and services							55 774		55 774	I. Production /
P.6	Exports of goods and services								42 567	42 567	external
P.1	Output of goods and services	180 752	12 856	30 278	46 508	6 282	276 675			276 675	doods and
P.2	Intermediate consumption								148 312	148 312	services
D.21-D.31	Net taxes on products						20 761			20 761	
B.1g/B.1°g	Gross added value/gross domestic product	66 946	8 221	23 962	26 661	2 573	149 123			149 123	II.1.1.
K 1	Consumption of fixed capital										income
B In/B I'n	Value added net/Net domestic product	7.633	21 341	10 954	2.017	20 761	124 370			124 370	account
B 11	External balance of goods and services	1000	£1 J41	17 024	2017	10/01	124 370	13 207		13 707	
D.1	Compensation of employees				75 108		75 108	350		75 547	112
D.2-D.3	Net taxes on production and imports			24 723	75 170		24 723	1 273		25 995	Allocation of
D.21-D.31	Net taxes on products			21 737			21 737	864		22 602	primary
D.29-D.39	Net taxes on production			2 985			2 985	409		3 394	income
	·			2,005			1,00				account
B.2g	Gross operating surplus	24 014	4 583	2 552		529	31 678			31 678	
B.3g	Gross mized income				22 589		22 589			22 589	
B.2n	Net operating surplus	9 833	3 995	- 70		- 27	13 732			13 732	
B.3n	Net mized income				15 783		15 783			15 783	
D.4	Property income	4 759	12 595	861	10 707	582	29 505	10 919		40 424	
P.119	Adjustment to the FISIM (Financial Intermediation		- 3 688								
B.54	services indirectly Measured) Gross pational income/ Gross balance of	15 000	A 230	10 220	106 257	00.4	146 00 4			146 00 4	II.2. Secondari
2.09	primary incomes	19 009	4038	13 233	100 799	y84	140 224			140 224	distribution
B.5n	Net national income? Net balance of	828	4 050	16 717	99 448	428	121 470			121 470	income
DE	primary incomes			10.000			10.00			10.00	account
D.9	Current taxes on income, wealth, etc	1.000		12 574			12 574	20		12 594	
D.61	Social contributions	1753	2 589	18 697	16	20	23 109	45		23 154	
D.62	Other everent transfers	1 014	0.050	0.063	25 910	0.400	25 910	129		26 040	
D.r D.fa	Gross disposable income	1 214	2 000	9857	3 492	2 4 2 3	21 036	2 926		23 962	11.2
D.6y	Not disposable income	9884	4 907	27 199	102 404	3 312	147 700			147 700	Redistribution
D.62	Social transfers in kind	- 4 297	4 3 1 9	245//	20 100	2 /50	122 953			22 122	of income in
B.7a	Gross adjusted disposable income	0.004	4 007	0 070	124 527	200	147 704			147 704	kind account
B 7n	Net adjusted disposable income	7 004	4 907	0 0 / 0 E AEE	124 737	300	147 700			147 700	income
B.6a	Gross disposable income	- 4 237	4 317	2 420	102 404	- 250	147 706			147 706	account
B.6n	Net disposable income	- 4 297	4 319	24 577	101 404	2 756	177 953			122 953	
P.4	Actual Final Consumption		4515		20021	1100	166,700		128 681	128 681	
P.3	Final consumption expenditure								128 681	128 681	
D.8	Adjustment for the change in the net equity of				835		835		120 001	120 001	
	households in pension funds reserves				000		000				
B.8g	Gross saving										
B.8n	Net saving										
B.12	Current external balance										
										Accumulat	ion account
									Changes in	liabilities a	nd net wortl
B.8g	Gross saving	9 884	4 072	- 4 775	9 544	300	19 025			19 025	III.1.1. Change
B.8n	Net saving	- 4 297	3 484	- 7 397	2 737	- 256	- 5 728			- 5 728	due to saving
B.12	Current external balance							14 624		14 624	and capital
D.9	Capital transfers, receivable	1 991	2 279	3 589	2 326	392	10 578	162		10 740	transfers
D.9	Capital transfers, payable (-)	- 146	- 4 275	- 3 693	- 216	- 7	- 8 336	- 2 404		- 10 740	account
B.10.1	unanges in net worth due to saving and canital transfers	- 2 452	1 488	- 7 500	4 848	130	- 3 487	12 383		8 896	Acquisitions
P.51	Gross fixed capital formation								33 098	33 098	of non-
K.1	Consumption of fixed capital (-)									55 656	financial
P.52	Changes in inventories								382	382	assets
P.53	Acquisitions less disposals of valuables								170	170	account
K.2	Acquisitions less disposals of non-produced non-										
	financial assets										
B.9	Net lending (+) /borrowing (-)										
			0.40	0.4°		0.45					
		5.11	5.12	5.13	S.14	+ 5.15	5.1	5.Z			
	Net acquisition of financial assets\										III.2 Financial
	Net incurrence of liabilities	14 850	33 798	9 604	10	686	68 938	18 872		87 810	account
F.1	Monetary gold and SDRs										
F.2	Currency and deposits		16 393	538			16 931	3 371		20 302	1
F.3	Securities other than shares	Securities other than shares 5/328 - 4/400 10/313 - 45		11 086	14 344		25 430	1			
F4	Loaps	counce memoraletes 2 220 - 4 490 10 213 - 60 C 721 2 202 124 11 422		20.460	. 2 372		18 004				
 Е Б	Shares and other equity	× 100	0.260	- 174			16 040	1040		17 000	-
r.5 E e	Incurance technical receiver	81/8	9 /62				13 940	1 949		1/ 009	-
F.0	Other accounts receivable and to	- 101	101 8	1.020		976	020 8	82		o 132 0 0 0 0	-
895	Net lending (a) therrowing ( )	- 4 460	140	-10/3	- 0	7,0	800 C -	1 499		- 2009	-
	Chalinia d diamana (")	- 8 419	435	- 9 025	4	/00	- 12 241	12 241			
	Statistical discrepancy	339	- 246	- 2		2	94	- 94			

Source: Statistics Portugal (INE)- Portuguese National Accounts for 2005.